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2025
( )
35,909,814.50 60.77
31,600,779.82 53.48
19,075,443.20 32.28
14,732,074.72 24.93
5,420,094.06 9.17
5,240,574.73 8.87
4,869,977.42 8.24
4,352,586.53 7.37
3,585,913.45 6.07
2,828,202.00 4.79
1,636,764.02 2.77
1,190,017.23 2.01
974,630.79 1.65
392,700.68 0.66
199,822.43 0.34
100,155.16 0.17
(7,077.09) (0.01)
(752,496.69) (1.27)
(993,623.30) (1.68)
(1,409,799.46) (2.39)
(1,584,479.11) (2.68)
(2,103,551.34) (3.56)
(3.339,587.74) (5.65)
(3,563,758.24) (6.03)
(4,182,784.87) (7.08)
(4,655,752.93) (7.88)
(6,058,276.65) |  (10.25)
(15,836,045.22) |  (26.80)
EMU (50,979,719.97) |  (86.28)
732,783.63 1.24
(79,219.57) (0.13)
215,793.93 0.37
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197,499.69 0.33
128,091.13 0.22
62,486.19 0.11
55,682.00 0.09
33,190.16 0.06
13,030.58 0.02
6,796.84 0.01
(535.21) 0.00
(1,306.22) 0.00
(9,995.94) (0.02)
(18,762.31) (0.03)
(21,308.17) (0.04)
(62,544.18) (0.11)
(107,529.41) (0.18)
(154,062.41) (0.26)
(178,174.29) (0.30)
(663,988.55) (1.12)
(505,636.17) (0.86)
36,057,742.39 61.02
23,030,006.01 38.98
59,087,748.40 100.00

( 8,835 )
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(2025 )
. « « « « O
5/29/2025 9,400,000.00 2025/5/29 9,270,817.24 98.62572 9,335,822.91 99.306635 15.80
6/26/2025 6,500,000.00 2025/6/26 6,399,343.02 98.45143 6,434,860.97 98.986057 10.89
7/17/2025 5,500,000.00 2025/7/17 5,405,832.21 98.28786 5,431,627.74 98.742000 9.19
6/12/2025 4,850,000.00 2025/6/12 4,779,163.33 98.53945 4,809,303.65 99.149651 8.14
4/17/2025 2,900,000.00 2025/4/17 2,867,028.85 98.86306 2,894,522 .86 99.799306 4.90
5/8/2025 2,700,000.00 2025/5/8 2,664,854.40 98.69831 2,688,227.41 99.552708 4.55
5/22/2025 2,260,000.00 2025/5/22 2,228,795.49 98.61927 2,246,472.95 99.390156 3.80
8/7/2025 2,100,000.00 2025/8/7 2,067,896.02 98.47124 2,068,976.01 98.508796 3.50
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2025
(015 11 30 ) 13,610,125.41 2,034,985,951 11.18 1,672
(2016 11 30 ) 19,482,476.27 2,913,019,852 9.81 1,467
(017 11 30 ) 19,026,583.79 2,844,854,808 10.02 1,498
4,627. 1,4 2 .2 1,234
(2018 11 30 ) 9,604,627.65 436,083,926 8.25 ,23
.02 1,481,124,1 . 1,444
(2019 11 30 ) 9,905,860.0 481,124,190 9.66 ,
(2020 11 30 ) 7,324,017.98 1,095,087,168 8.62 1,289
10
(021 11 30 ) 3,490,741.30 521,935,639 9.03 1,350
11
(2022 11 30 ) 9,065,308.76 1,355,444,966 12.50 1,869
12
(2023 11 30 ) 14,376,815.94 2,149,621,519 12.63 1,888
13
(o024 11 30 ) 27,233,304.47 4,071,923,684 12.04 1,800
2024 17,436,221.88 2,607,063,895 14.70 2,198
19,837,224._80 2,966,061,852 13.92 2,081
22,539,437.77 3,370,096,735 13.56 2,027
23,904,098.12 3,574,140,751 13.45 2,011
23,454,646.77 3,506,938,785 12.78 1,911
25,436,177.76 3,803,217,299 12.82 1,917
10 24,105,175.89 3,604,205,899 11.84 1,770
11 27,233,304.47 4,071,923,684 12.04 1,800
12 27,149,709.92 4,059,424,627 12.21 1,826
2025 27,780,318.71 4,153,713,254 12.44 1,860
27,276,270.40 4,078,347,950 11.97 1,790
26,686,161.70 3,990,114,897 11.71 1,751
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(2015 11 30 1,600,105.36 150,361,901 11.07 1,040
(2016 11 30 4,131,630.14 388,249,284 9.60 902
(017 11 30 2,549,737.03 239,598,789 9.60 902
(2018 11 30 884,779.90 83,142,767 7.68 722
(2019 11 30 4,028,086.39 378,519,278 8.67 815
(2020 11 30 795,108.36 74,716,333 7.46 701
(Zégl 1 30 741,478.51 69,676,736 7.52 707
(2322 11 30 924,092.95 86,837,015 10.18 957
(2333 11 30 1,014,491.54 95,331,770 10.03 943
(2324 11 30 858,935.72 80,714,190 9.46 889
2024 1,678,565.26 157,734,777 11.64 1,094
1,589,858.21 149,398,976 11.02 1,036

1,546,513.86 145,325,907 10.72 1,007

1,532,164.18 143,977,468 10.62 998

1,454,808.57 136,708,361 10.09 948

1,457,738.43 136,983,680 10.11 950

10 845,527.91 79,454,258 9.32 876

11 858,935.72 80,714,190 9.46 889

12 872,240.00 81,964,393 9.61 903

2025 889,509.64 83,587,221 9.80 921
855,010.80 80,345,365 9.42 885

836,814.58 78,635,466 9.22 866
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2 149,317 11

(2015 11 30 ) 1053,149,3 1053

2016 11 30 ) 4,631,462,053 9,558

Qo7 1 % ) 3,990,566, 124 9,618

018 1 %0 ) 2,945,093,193 7,753

019 1 % ) 3,445,332,056 8,807

2,778,776,4 7,74

(2020 11 30 ) 178,776,430 745
10

@21 11 %0 ) 1,936,173,599 8,088
11

@02 1 0 ) 3,979,550,051 11,129
12

2023 1 % ) 4,134,321,807 10,691

13 4,801,034,763 9,707

(2024 11 30 ) PSR ’

2024 2,948,190,514 12,186

2,776,914,756 11,511

2,761,891,482 11,164

5,183,942,773 11,014

4,904,750, 107 10,461

5,069,151,197 10,456

10 4,650,123,046 9,588

11 4,801,034,763 9,707

12 4,853,219,088 9,812

2025 5,110,400,112 9,964

4,908,216, 202 9,559

4,786,415,310 9,324

2025
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Aspect
2024 11 30

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
$ 43,264,644 6,468,930 $ 25,230,690 3,772,493
16,730,165 2,501,494 16,327,995 2,441,362
3,089,797 461,986 4,840,052 723,685
163,838 24,497 66,111 9,885
42,869 6,410 - -
1,772 265 1,561 233
$ 63,293,085 9,463,582  $ 46,466,409 6,947,657
$3,002,481 448,931 $2,766,935 413,712
91,820 13,729 70,210 10,498
71,534 10,696 53,372 7,980
68,145 10,189 377,031 56,374
60,891 9,104 46,561 6,962
35,835 5,358 35,106 5,249
14,874 2,224 15,118 2,260
6,054 905 4,949 740
2,340 350 2,180 326
1,933 289 1,478 221
- - 53,382 7,982
51,883 7,758 32,648 4,882
3,407,790 509,533 3,458,970 517,185
59,885,295 8,954,049 43,007,439 6,430,472
$63,293,085 9,463,582 $46,466,409 6,947,657

Aspect
2025 18
2025 18
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$ 2,191,833 327,723 $ 1,669,438 249,614
(4,671,995) (698,557) (3,000,838) (448,685)
(2,480,162) (370,834) (1,331,400) (199,071)
1,004,468 150,188 276,917 41,405
685,952 102,564 617,809 92,375
457,038 68,336 409,707 61,259
287,933 43,052 258,115 38,593
139,305 20,829 97,504 14,579
109,492 16,371 97,414 14,565
89,245 13,344 89,000 13,307
20,555 3,073 20,499 3,065
15,450 2,310 15,000 2,243
9,141 1,367 8,194 1,225
83,301 12,455 64,784 9,687
2,901,880 433,889 1,954,943 292,303
(5,382,042) (804,723) (3,286,343) (491,374)
- - (14,096) (2,108)
$ (5,382,042) (804,723)  $ (3,300,439) (493,482)
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$ 43,007,439 6,430,472 $ 39,463,046 5,900,515
38,585,579 5,769,316 14,804,246 2,213,531
(16,325,681) (2,441,016) (7,959,414) (1,190,092)
(5,382,042) (804,723) (3,300,439) (493,482)

$ 59,885,295 8,954,049 $ 43,007,439 6,430,472
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2024 11 30

2023 11 30

$ (5,382,042) (804,723)  $ (3,300,439) (493,482)
(2,191,833) (327,723) (1,669,438) (249,614)
- - 14,096 2,108
(7,573,875)  (1,132,446) (4,955,781) (740,988)
(18,033,954)  (2,696,437) 3,585,270 536,070
(402,170) (60,132) (4,901,257) (732,836)
(42,869) (6,410) - -
(211) 32) (1,438) (215)
235,546 35,219 455,093 68,046
(53,382) (7,982) (2,915,680) (435,952)
75,542 11,295 (13,037) (1,949)
(25,795,373)  (3,856,924) (8,746,830) (1,307,826)
2,191,833 327,723 1,669,438 249,614
(23,603,540)  (3,529,201) (7,077,392) (1,058,212)
38,487,852 5,754,704 15,667,053 2,342,538
(16,634,567)  (2,487,200) (7,871,215) (1,176,904)
- - (14,096) (2,108)
21,853,285 3,267,503 7,781,742 1,163,526
(1,750, 255) (261,698) 704,350 105,314
4,840,052 723,685 4,135,702 618,370
$ 3,089,797 461,986  $ 4,840,052 723,685
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$ 2,292,090 3.83
3,068,870 5.12
$ 5,360,960 8.95
$ 43,264,644 72.25
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$ 25,230,690 58.67
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$ (1,298,440) (3.02)
(1,468,495) (3.41)
$ (2.766,935) (6.43)
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2023 12 2022 12
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(4,267,818) 1,411,927
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5,889,221 63,660
48,622,236 $ 1,630,816




EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000

2023 11 30

$ (684,644) $ (12,575)
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78/218



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000

2023 11 30

799,328 90,754 357,574 1,247,656
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(2,370,229) 237,023
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(4,267,818) 426,782
28,051,849 2,805,185
(2,070, 353) 207,035
(979,595) 97,960
7,555,465 755,547
5,889,221 588,922
31,308,089
(113,906,321)
10
10
(684,644) 68,464
(1,971,648) 197,165
5,724,956 572,496
(2,766,999) 276,700
(3,304,140) 330,414
(40,580) 4,058
(1,389,280) 138,928
(1,388,010) 138,801
(5.820,345)
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(33,689) (56,018) (85,856) (45,822)
2024 11 30
10 10 10 10 10
12,963 4,680 1,575 75,435 11,024
10 10 10 10 10
(2,325)  (4,506)  (13,492) 116)  (1,586)
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10 10 10 10 10 10
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10 10 10 10
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5,425 124,458

(130) 11

33,486 3,044

(20, 845) 1,895

(131,433) 11,948

45,800 4,163

110,338 10,030

(107,155) 9,741

51,598 402,298

(95,984) 191,098

(6,728) 39,327

(180, 958) 583,096

(885) 64,911

(145,916) 649,592

20,173 357,983

(29, 656) 277,965

(8,976) 361,660

(14,158) 31,415

(1,946) 45,195
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(160, 358) 528,964
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11,668 $ 1,167
253,916 25,392
(9.,418) 942
219,600 21,960
112,511 11,251
(13,911) 1,391
(36,690) 3,669
164,858 16,486
5,129 513
1,101 110
(2,092) 209
(2,885) 289
(15,466) 1,547
2,602 260
690,923
2023 11 30
10
2023 11 30 10
(37,550) $ 62,821
(2,884) 344,712
(67,901) 506,790
(14,387) 1,308
(130,599) 423,059
(38,920) 123,892
(46,595) 139,660
(6,194) 179,381
(10,749) 977
35,012 3,183
3,994 363
10,264 933
(80,447) 7,314
36,351 3,304
(174,937) 15,904
(50,524) 70,851
7,964 145,191
(9,568) 30,957
(100,950) 170,095
(1,600) 144,840
(105,753) 710,575
(15,426) 191,542
43,102 539,311
(19,011) 46,205
(1,596) 15,160
(1,609) 20,161
(16,004) 296,600
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796 80
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(13,708) 1,371
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2024 11 30 12

$ (2,743,654) $ (199,515) $ (59,312) $ (3,002,481)

2023 11 30

$ (2,402,156) $ (297,434) $ (67,345) $ (2,766,935)

13
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2024 11 30
$ 37,903,684 $ - % - $ 37,903,684
- 2,292,090 - 2,292,090
3,068,870 - - 3,068,870
$ 40,972,554 $ 2,292,090 $ - $ 43,264,644
$ - $  (1,564,427) $ - $  (1,564,427)
(1,438,054) - - (1,438,054)
$ (1,438,054) (1,564,427) - (3,002,481)
2023 11 30
$ 22,372,123 $ $ $ 22,372,123
708,093 708,093
2,150,474 2,150,474
$ 24,522,597 $ 708,003 $ $ 25,230,690
$ $  (1,298,440) $ $  (1,298,440)
(1,468,495) (1,468,495)

$ (1,468,495) $ (1,298,440) $ $ (2,766,935)
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Aspect
2024 11 30
5,302,619 30,427,680 2024 12 231,726
10,315,593 68,145 2024 12 828
50,000 32,347 2024 12 18 291
982,664 700,000 2024 12 18 2,623
685,522,672 700,000 2024 12 18 3,639
2,899,223 400,000 2024 12 18 219
448,007,660 100,000 2024 12 18 733
30,371,923 1,200,000 2024 12 18 1,604
250,000 231,580 2024 12 18 1,063
2,550,000 1,050,374,176 2024 12 18 10,760
375,000 4,313,871 2024 12 18 182
800,000 841,220 2024 12 18 5,722
1,825,853 500,000 2024 12 18 3,335
589,143,659 3,650,000 2024 12 18 83,280
167,105,810 1,100,000 2024 12 18 19,664
5,171,456 250,000 2024 12 18 3,408
50,000 29,509 2024 12 18 136
101,985,229 8,675,000 2024 12 18 64,627
2,264,081 600,000 2024 12 18 2,025
8,799,300 150,000 2024 12 18 62
39,168,999 9,000,000 2024 12 18 110,368
134,437 100,000 2024 12 18 508
24,033,096 1,325,000 2024 12 18 4,697
1,542,065,830 1,100,000 2024 12 18 5,752
863,414 75,000 2024 12 18 22
1,307,477 1,400,000 2024 12 18 6,147
27,621,288 850,000 2024 12 18 1,617
5,174,554 150,000 2024 12 18 1,081
13,828,682 16,600,000 2024 12 18 43,487
50,000 63,439 2024 12 18 261
1,411,453 2,150,000 2024 12 18 8,057
20,050,000 27,798,181 2024 12 18 173,800
8,450,000 7,381,638 2024 12 18 47,503
4,000,000 3,826,408,392 2024 12 18 72,469
5,050,000 36,173,271 2024 12 18 56,510
2,625,000 11,363,401,333 2024 12 18 69,972
4,018,268 3,750,000 2024 12 18 48,223
2,055,617 1,600,000 2024 12 18 17,239
100,000 1,576,900,000 2024 12 18 525
600,000 50,702,879 2024 12 18 685
4,850,000 6,741,768,100 2024 12 18 15,755
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4,650,000 93,620,418 2024 12 18 62,485
1,718,388 2,875,000 2024 12 18 13,844
50,000 2,931,800 2024 12 18 1
50,000 66,227 2024 12 18 487
200,000 6,844,987 2024 12 18 148
5,675,000 182,461,415 2024 12 18 49,367
475,000 8,401,170 2024 12 18 10,182
847,076 552,671 2024 12 30 311
4,748,577,761 30,926,974 2024 12 30 947,377
2,450,000 14,229,439 2025 87,283

$ 2,292,090
30,427,680 5,250,000 2024 12 $ (179,107)
2,100,000 1,393,983 2024 12 18 (23,223)
69,419 50,000 2024 12 18 (364)
242,713,670 250,000 2024 12 18 (872)
9,044,221 1,250,000 2024 12 18 (1,503)
6,382,033,525 1,500,000 2024 12 18 (65,018)
5,051,567 200,000 2024 12 18 (169)
5,500,000 5,172,363 2024 12 18 (64,953)
1,450,000 36,690,501 2024 12 18 (1,565)
1,850,000 1,542,842 2024 12 18 (7,005)
600,000 248,569,464 2024 12 18 (1,110)
4,500,000 743,062,913 2024 12 18 (214,713)
14,775,000 171,211,500 2024 12 18 (107,357)
959,953,090 2,350,000 2024 12 18 (30, 495)
105,618,902 1,250,000 2024 12 18 (1,570)
14,965,437, 752 950,000 2024 12 18 (5,941)
49,228,752 2,500,000 2024 12 18 (87,731)
350,000 209,833 2024 12 18 (2,324)
49,699,055 4,275,000 2024 12 18 (18,827)
2,612,911 700,000 2024 12 18 (5,220)
214,992 50,000 2024 12 18 (30)
1,790,773 1,350,000 2024 12 18 (11,184)
101,401,828 5,775,000 2024 12 18 (164, 668)
486,829,685 350,000 2024 12 18 (914)
287,697 25,000 2024 12 18 0
185,450 200,000 2024 12 18 (639)
8,098,914 250,000 2024 12 18 (295)
8,553,034 250,000 2024 12 18 (278)
1,036,394 1,250,000 2024 12 18 (2,996)
3,500,000 4,538,884 2024 12 18 (79,932)
1,815,378 2,800,000 2024 12 18 (12,301)
350,000 490,517 2024 12 18 (729)
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3,000,000 2,649,204 2024 12 18 (15,581)
300,000 294,993,930 2024 12 18 (2,790)
225,000 1,001,843,140 2024 12 18 (262)
897,530 850,000 2024 12 18 (2,347)
4,361,701 3,450,000 2024 12 18 (33,552)
450,000 7,154,296,309 2024 12 18 (1,312)
6,150,000 22,977,717 2024 12 18 (184,293)
7,450,000 1,136,597,995 2024 12 18 (165,580)
200,000 279,503,145 2024 12 18 (420)
850,000 17,506,058 2024 12 18 (7,818)
2,128,576 3,625,000 2024 12 18 (20,632)
1,600,000 6,058,469 2024 12 18 (10,963)
550,000 32,368,449 2024 12 18 (2,009)
650,000 872,780 2024 12 18 (2,506)
500,000 17,371,985 2024 12 18 (7,208)
525,000 17,057,564 2024 12 18 (917)
1,175,000 21,428,114 2024 12 18 (10,569)
68,361 10,315,593 2024 12 30 (881)
290,573 50,000 2025 (1,752)
$ (1,564,427)

05/12/2024 3,900,000 3,897,851 3,898,555 $ 704

01/09/2025 2,900,000 2,885,350 2,886,251 901

01/16/2025 2,700,000 2,684,747 2,684,859 112

01/23/2025 4,612,000 4,582,462 4,582,498 36

01/30/2025 10,200,000 10,122,635 10,125,590 2,955

02/06/2025 4,850,000 4,809,975 4,810,877 902

02/13/2025 3,500,000 3,468,356 3,468,737 381

02/20/2025 5,500,000 5,445,614 5,446,317 703

37,806,990 37,903,684 $ 6,694
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SOFR 2025

CORRA 202

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR

EURIBOR
90 2024
90 2025

10

10

WwC
CATTLE FEEDER 2
CATTLE FEEDER 2

2025

2025
ICE
ICE

20
20
20
2025
No. 2025
2025
DAX

S&P500 E-MINI ESG 2
2024
50

5
2025 12
2026 12
2025
2026
2025
2026
2027
2025
2026

12

2024 12

2024 12
2025
2025
2025
E 2025
025
025
2024 12

2025
2025

10tn 2025

25
25
25

2024 12
MINI e-CBOT 2024 12

024 12
12

2024 12

96/218

(15)
20
21
23
23
21
17
21
24
21
23

(64)

(43)
24

(13)
46
39
15

(12)

®
12

ST =S NSRS o

22
13
®

@7)
16

15

®

1,775
572
8,345
9,720
9,323
7,630
3,967
7,961
9,746
8,040
8,900
5,907
1,057
9,645
11,755
64,547
9,110
9,261
4,999
1,113
800
4,269
274,150
137,430
125,425
75,039
6,420
129,506
373,500
229,406
3,763
8,540
5,619
51,945
116,600
15,295
5,006
3,988
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bobl

2024 12 31

BTP 2024 12 69

FTSE100
FTSE A50
FTSE
100
IFSC NIFTY50

10 OSE
2025 (22)

2024 12 59

2024 12 210

KC HRW
10
3
200

2025
2025

2025

2025

2025
LME

2025

2024 12 40
2024 12 68

2024 12 6

2024 12 67

40 2024 12 (6)
2025 28

2024 12 ©)
2024 12 3

2024 12 [0
21
72
16
30

2025 (16)
(15)

EURO 2025 (59)

MSCI  EMGMKT

2024 12 10

100 E-MINI 2024 12 5

NY ULSD
NY ULSD

2025 (14)
2025 1 (23)

30 OMX 2024 12 (94)

Phelix

2025
MGE 2025

S&P500 E-MINI
S&P 60
Euro BTP
2025
2025
2025
SP1200
TTF

2025 Q)

2025 1
(11)

©))

2024 12 9
2024 12 28

2024 12 116
(76)

(85)

®

2024 12 1

2025 20
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32,892
164,183
23,497
20,403
1,051
4,001
2,153
52,660
979

67
13,387
81,151
81,538
2,168
5,300
26,220
19,120
27,100
9,350
46,301
3,950
19,770
3,135
27,110
60,761
54,369
1,107
13,140
2,195
245
775
74,613
170,939
40,816
33,962
8,620
498

33
24,830
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2025 10 15,916
10 (CBT 2025 84 63,461

2025 (22) 9,688

2025 (14) 4,238

SAF 2025 1 449

ICE 2025 ®) 2,555

WT1 2025 (35) 58,100
3,068,870

SOFR 2025 12 ®) (700)

SOFR 2026 12 (6) (2,762)

SOFR 2025 @ (175)

SOFR 2026 (6) (2,550)

SOFR 2026 (5) (1,600)

SOFR 2027 @ (3,812)

SOFR 2025 @ (25)

SOFR 2026 (6) (2,975)

CORRA 2025 12 13 (2,108)
CORRA 2025 20 (375)
CORRA 2026 3 (929)
CORRA 2026 7 (1,224)
CORRA 2025 16 (875)
90 2025 12 ) (995)
90 2025 (26) (1,529)
90 2026 ) (584)
90 2025 (®) (1,657)
2024 12 (13) (32,710)

2024 12 @ (455)

2024 12 ) (208)

BIST30 2024 12 (97) (15, 466)
2024 12 @ (719)

2025 15 (31,280)

2025 1 (650)

CAC40 2024 12 7 (90)
CBOE VIX 2025 1 (597)
10tn 2025 5 (6,220)

2025 (25) (6,687)

98/218



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000

2025 (28) (1,588)

ECX 2024 12 (20) (57.394)
2000  Mini 2024 12 @ (12,325)

2024 12 (32) (92,391)

BuxI30 BND 2024 12 [C)) (35,399)

FTSE 2024 12 4 (489)
FTSE 2024 12 25 (35,086)
FTSE 2024 12 7 (11,664)
RBOB 2025 60 (200,210)
2024 12 ©) (6,034)

2024 12 (13) (7.878)

ICE SONIA 2025 12 10 (8,058)
ICE SONIA 2026 12 (6) (5.717)
ICE SONIA 2025 9 (10,224)
ICE SONIA 2026 @ (303)
ICE SONIA 2025 17) (1,513)
ICE SONIA 2026 6 (1,688)
ICE SONIA 2027 (6) (6,370)
ICE SONIA 2025 11 (11,370)
ICE SONIA 2026 (5) (4,666)
2024 12 (5) (9,675)

LME 2025 (6) (1,658)
LME 2024 12 0 (209,978)
LME 2025 @ (29, 386)
LME 2024 12 0 (25,720)
LME 2025 (11) (14,952)
LME 2024 12 0 (12,171)
LME 2024 12 0 (58,343)
LME 2025 3 (6,253)
LME 2024 12 0 (103,760)
2025 (45) (55,011)

2025 @ (5.,975)

MSCI EAFE 2024 12 ) (3.610)
MSCI 2024 12 ) (2,092)
2025 (36) (109,520)

2025 @ (4,510)

2024 12 ®) (755)

CME 2024 12 4 (12,350)
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225 SGX 2024 12
30 OMX
0SE) 2025 10
EURO 2025
SET50 2024 12
SGX 62 2024 12
2025
2025
ESG-X 2024 12
WORLD 2025
WORLD 2025
SMI 2024 12
2024 12
(CBT 2025
CBT 2025
CBT 2025
ULTRA CBT 2025
VSTOXX 2024 12
WT 2025

ESG 2024 12

100/218

18
32

Q)

(38)

53
25

(33)

(48)
®
®
18

(20,237)
Q)
(2,082)
(7,472)
(2.885)
(3,280)
(785)
(3,100)
(656)
(10,763)
(2,061)
(9,418)
(14,438)
(20,484)
(29,875)
(5.375)
(1,625)
(778)
(6,690)

(1,438,054)
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Dacusign Ervedops D 657CTD2-EGH0 -4 AR E-AGFL-084 1 28553880

K - AN = Jl il
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
3 NOVEMBER 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
30 Movember 30 November
2024 2023
Assels
Financial assets s fair value through profit or loss (Notes 3, 4 and 9) 5 43264644 8 25,230,690
Margm accounts (Mote 2) 16,730,165 16,327 995
Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 2 and 9) 3,089,797 4,840,052
Subzeription receivable 163 838 66,111
Duee froan brokers 1869 .
Other assets 1,772 1,561
Total assets -3 63,293,085 & AG.A66,409
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 3,4 and &) 8 3002481 5 2766033
Agent and distributor fee payable (Mote §) 91,820 70,210
Sub-investment manager mamagement fee payable (Nole 6 71,534 53372
Redemption payable 68,145 377,031
Investmenl managerient fee payable (Note &) 6,801 46,561
Professional fee pavable 35,835 35,106
Administration fee payable (MNote 6) 14,874 15,118
Trustee fee payable Mote 6) G054 4,045
Manager fee payvable (Mote &) 2340 2180
Custody fiee payvable (Note 6) 1,933 L478
Duse to brokers - %3382
Other aconeed expenises 51,883 32,648
Liabilities (excluding net assels atirbulable to Unitholder) 3,407 700 3AS8070
Met assets attributable to Unitholder (Mote 8) 50,585 205 43.007 439

Total liabilities 5 63295085 & 46,466,409
Approved for issusnce on behalf of “CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited” (formerly
“FirstCanbbean Intemational Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited™), not in its individual capacity but selely
as Trustee to DIAM Cavman Trust - Aspect Managed Futures Fumd by:

it 18 February 2025 | 1001540 EST

et [t Diate: 18 February 2025

[r— 18 February 2025 | ob:5147 PST

Approved for issuance on behalf of Queensgate, not in its ndividual capacity but solely as Manager to DIAM Cayman
Trst by:

[ o= 18 February 2025 | 08:30:55 PST Date: 18 February 2025

PR 18 February zo25 | o4:25:25 P5ST

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statemments,

-
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Year ended
30 November

1,669,438
(3,000,838)

(1,331,400)

276,917
617,809
409,707
258,115
97,504
97,414
£9,000
20,499
15,000
8,194
64,784

1,954,943

— (338304 (3,386.343)

ATE OF MPREHEN INCOME
YEAR DED 3 M MBER 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended
30 November
2024
Income
Interest income 5 2,191,833
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and finencial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3) (4.671,995)
Total net loss (2,480,162)
Expenses
Performance fee (Note 6) 1,004,468
Sub-invegtment manager management fee (Note 6) 635,952
Agent and distributor fee (Note 6) 457,038
Investment management fee (Note &) 287933
Brokerage commission gxpense 139,305
Professional fee 109,492
Administration fee (MNote 5) 89,245
Trustee fee (Mote &) 20,555
Manager fee (Note 6) 15,450
Custody fee (Note 6) 9,141
Other expenses 33,301
Total operating expenses 2,901,880
Operating loss
Finance costs
Distributions to Unitholder (Nate 7) ’

Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations
attributahls to Unitholder

(14,096)

£ (5,382042) %

(3,300,439)

The sccompanying notes are en integral part of these financial statements.

-5
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STATEMENT OF NET ATTR] ABLE TD ER
YEAR DED M N 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended Year ended
30 November 30 November
2024 2023
Net ssaets attributable to Unitholder
Balance at beginning of year £ 43007435 0§ 39463046
Subscriptions during the year (Note B) 38,585,579 14,804,246
Redemptions during the year (Note 8) (16,325,681) (7,959.414)
et decrease in net assets resulting from operations
attributable to Unitholder during the year {5,382,042) (3,300,439}

Balance at end of year 5 59885295 § 43,007,439

The sccompanying notes are en integral part of these financial statements.

G-
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ED M N 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended
30 November
2024
Cash flows from operating activitics
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations
stiributable to Unitholder 5 (3,382.042)
Adjusted for:
Interest income (2,191,833)
Distributions to Unitholder -
{7,573,873)
Met (increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (18,033,954)
Net increase in margin accounts (402,170
Net increase in due from brokers (42,869)
Net increase in other assets (211)
Net increase in financial lizbilities at fair value through
profit or loss 235,546
Met decrease in due to brokers (53,382)
Met increase/{decreass) in other payables 75,542
Net cash used in operations (25,795,373)
Interest received 2,191,833
Net cash used in operating activities (23,603,540)
Cush flows from financing activitics
Procesds from subscriptions from Unitholder 38,487 852
Redemptions paid to Unitholder (16,634,567)
Dristributions paid to Unitholder -
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,853 285
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {1,750,255)
Cash and cash equivalents &t beginning of year 4,840,
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 3,089,797

EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000

Year ended
30 November

(3,300,439)

(1,669,438)
14,096

(4,955,781)

3,585,270
{4,901,257)

(1,438)
455,093

(2,915,680)
(13,037)

(8,746,830)
1,669,438

(7,077,392)

15,667,053
(7,871,215)
(14,096)

7,781,742

The sccompanying notes are en integral part of these financial statements.

-F-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ED 30 M 2024

1. Organization

DIAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust™) is an exempted unit trust established under the laws ofthe Coyman Islands pursusnt
to declaration of trast (the “Trust Deed™) dated 29 June 2011, DIAM Cayman Trust - Aspect Managed Futures Fund
(the “Clazs Fund”) commenced operations on 16 March 2012, The Trust is registered under the Cayman Islands
Murtuzal Funds Act with effect from 29 Jume 2011, The Trust's place of business is 25 Main Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1107, Cayman Islands. The Trust filed on behalf of the Class Fund a securities registration
statement on 3 February 2012 pursnant to the Financial Instrament Exchange Law with the Dircctor of the Kanto
Local Finance Burcau and a rogistration statoment pursuant to the Investment Trost Law with the Commissioner of
ihe Financial Services Agency.

‘The Class Fund is a series trust of the Trust. ‘The investment objective of the Class Fund is to generate medium-term
capital growth independent of overall movements in traditional stock and bond markets within a rigosous risk
management framework. The Sub-Investment Manager (Note 6) applies a fully systematic and broadly diversified
global rading system, which deploys multiple strategies that, primarity through the use of derivatives, seek to identify
and exploit directional moves in market behavior of a broad range of financial instruments and other assets inclueding
{but not limited to) equities, equity indices, debt securities (including bonds), currencies, interest rates and
commodities (including energy, metel and agricultural commaodities).

2. Significant sccounting policies

The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policied hive been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Class Fand have been prepared in sccordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) as issued by the International Standards Board, The financial statements have
‘been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial
lisbilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
eritical accounting estimates. It also requires the Trustes to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class
Fund's accourting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions und estimates are significant to the finencial statements are disclosed in Motes 2, 9 and 10.

All references to net assets throughouot this document refier to nel assets attributable to the bolder of Perticipating Units
unless otherwise stated. Net assets per unit information for cach class of Participating Units as disclosed in Note 8
has been determined as total assets less toial Habilies for each class, divided by the number of oulstanding uniis of
each class of Participating Units.

fa) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective | December 2023

There are po other standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on | December 2023 that have a material effect on the fimancial statements of the Class Fund,

{8} New standords, omendments and imferpretations Bawed e nor gffective for the financial period beginning
I December 2023 and not early adopted

105/218
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 M 2024

Basis of preparation (continued)

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and mterpretations ere effective for annual pericds beginning
after 1 December 2023, and have not been applied in prepering these financial staterments. Mone of these are expected
1o have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

The significant sccounting policies of the Clasa Fund, which have been consistently applied to all periods presented
{unless otherwise stated), ane as follows:

fa) Classification

The Class Fund classifies its investments in debt securities and derivatives st fair value through profit or loss. The
Class Fund classifies its investments based on both the Class Fund's business model for managing those fmmncial
assets ind the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolic of financial assets is mamaged,
and performance is evaluated on a fuir value basis. The Clasa Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and
usca that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. The contractnal cash fows of the Class
Fund*s debt securities are solely principal and interest, howewver, these securities are neither held for the purpose of
collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model's objective,

Derivative contracts that have a positive or negative fair value are presented as financial assets or financial labilities

As such, the Clasa Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio & Gnancisl assets or liebilities st fair value thoough
profit or loss. The Class Fund’s obligation concerning net assets attributable to Unitholder is recorded ot the
redeemable amounts, which approximates fair value. All other finmncial assets and lisbilities are classified as and
mensured at mmortized cost.

(B} Recognition, derecognition and mearurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date — the date on which the Class Fund
commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liahilities at fair valoe through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Class
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all finencial assets and financial liabilites at fair value through profit or loss are
measured ot fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets or financial
linhilities =t fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the Statement of Comprehemsive Income within
net changes in fair value on financial assets end lisbilities ot fair vatue through profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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(o) Fair value estimation

Securities for which there is an active market are valoed at fair valae, by reference to bid prices quoted on the exchange
upon which such securities are traded or prices quoted by the principal market makers for non-cxchange traded
investments.

The Class Fund enters into derivetive contracts comprising forward currency contracts and Artures contracts. These
derivative comtracts are carried at their fair value in the Statement of Financial Position and the resulting realized and
unreelized gains or Iosses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value is generally based
on gquoted market prices or broker or dealer price quotations. The fair value of over the counter derivatives is
determined based on valuation pricing models which teke into account relevant current market inputs for interest rates,
currencies, equities and commodities &s well as time values, liquidity and volatility factors underlying the positions,

: Cuah collaterul provided by the Class Fund is identified m the Staternent of Financial Position as mangin
accounts and is not inclided as a component of cash and cash equivalents. Margin accounts represent margin deposits
held in respect of open exchange-traded futures contracts and forward cunrency exchange contracts.

Margio Cash: Margin cash represent cash deposits held wiih the brokers as collateral against open futures contracis.
Cagh snd cash eguivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all
deposits with original terms to maturity of not more than 3 months, All of the Class Fund's cash and cash equivalent
balance as &t 30 November 2024 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Note 9).

Due from/to brokers: Amounts due from brokers represent amounts receivable from brolers arising from unsettied
derivative trensections with brokers. Amounts due to brokers represent gmounts payable to brokers ariging from
unsettied derivative transections with brokers,

OGetting finapcial instruments: Financial assets and lisbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Sttement of Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right io offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to scttle on & net basis or realize the asset and scitle the lisbility simultancousty.

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis,

-10-
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mnmdmmlmul]hluum;ﬂmlﬁchwmutmulmd. lu‘t:lﬂtmnmnnt;ttutﬁmnuhmd
cash equivalents and margin cash. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest
from debt securities.

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Tsland taces payable by the Class Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial statements. [oterest income earned by the Clazs Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tax at
source.

The Class Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are virtually all domiciled in countries other then the
Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign countries have tax lsws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined
on & self-assessment basis and, therefore, such toxes may not be deducted by the Class Fund’s brokers oo a
“withholding™ basis.

At 30 November 2024, the Class Fund has measured its tax labilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil
(30 November 2023: nil}.

Distributions: Distributions to the Unithelder are classified as other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Nate 7).

Foreign exchange transactions: Astets and Hahilities denominated in currencies other than the United States Dollar
{(“USD™) are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign cumency income and
expenditure items are converted ot the rete of exchange on the date of the transaction. (Gains and losses on foreign
currencies are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise,

Foreign exchange gams and losses relatng to the financiil assets end Liabilites carmied &t fair value through profit or
loss are presented in the Stutemnent of Comprehensive Income within ‘net changes in fair value on finencial nssets and
financial linbilities =t fair value through profit or loss'.

Fupctional apd pregestation corrency: [tems included in the Class Fund's financial statements are measured using
the currency of the primary economic enviremment in which it operates (the “functionsl currency™), the USD, The
majority of investrents are denominated in USD and a portion of the Class Fund’s subscriptions and redemptions ere
trunsacted in USD. In addition, the Class Fund hes adopted the USD as its presentation currency.

Earticipating Uplts: The Class Fund issues three class unis (Note 8) which are redeemable at the holder’s option
and do not have identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified s financial liabilities. The Participating Units
can be put back 1o the Class Fund by the holder on any business day fior cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Class Fund's net assets. The Participating Units are carried af the redemption amount that is payable at the Statement
of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fund.

=11l=
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At 30 November 2024 financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss which are held for trading are comprised

of:
Fair % of met
valus azsets
Investments in United States Treasury securities
1.5, Treasury Bills 5 37,903,684 63.30
Total investments in United States Treasury sccaritics 5 37,903,684 633 %
Derivative contracts
Forward contracts 5 2,292,090 183 %
Futyres contracts 3,068,870 512 %
Tatal derivative contracts 5 5,360,960 595 %
Tatal Ainancial ascets at falr valne throngh profit or loss 5 43,264,644 7135 %
At 30 November 2024 fmencial Eabilities st fair value through profit or loss which are held for trading are
comprised of;
Fair % ol net
value assels
Derivative contracts
Forward contracts 5 (1,564,427) (261) %
Futures contracts {1,438.054) 240 %
Tatal derivative contracts 5 (3,002 481) (5.01) %

Total Anancial Habilities at falr valoe through profit or loss 5 (3,002 481) (5.01) %

=12=
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At 30 November 2023 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are held for trading are comprised

of:
Fair % ofnet
value assels
Investments in United States Treasury securities
L5, Treasury Bills 5 23372,123 5202
Taotal investments in United States Treasury securities 5 22372123 5202 %
Derivative contracts
Forward contracts 5 708,093 1.65 %
Futures contracts 2,150,474 500 %
Tatal derfvative contracts 5 2,858 567 665 %
Taotal financial assets at fair valoe throogh profit or loss 5 215.230,690 15T Y
At 30 November 2023 financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are held for trading are
comprised of:
Fair % of net
vahe Bssets
Derivative contracts
Forward contracts $ (1,298,440) (3.02) %
Futures contracts {1,468,495) (341) %
Taotal derivative contracts 5 {2, T66,935) (6.43) %
Tatal financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loas $ {2,766,935) (6.43) %
Net changes in [air valuc on financial assets and Habilities at
fair value throogh profit or loss:
Period from Period from
1 December 2023 1 December 2022
o 30 November to 30 November
2024 2023
Realized § (6,910,710) % (3,043,704)
Change in unrealized 2238715 42,866

Total losscs 5 {4,671,995) $ {3,000,538)

=13=
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4. Derivative Nnancisl instraments

In the normal course of business, the Class Fund may trede verious financisl mstruments and enter mto verious
investment activities with off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments include futures mnd forward currency

Futures and forward curmency contracts provide for the delayved delivery of securities, commuodities, currencies or other
financial instruments with the counterparty agreeing o make or take delivery at a specified future date, st a specified
price or yield. Market and credit risk arise related to these contracts. As transactions in fatures require participants
to make both inital margin deposits and variation margin deposits directhy with the exchange on which the contracts
are traded, credit exposure with counterparties is limited.

The Class Fund is required (o maintsin collateral m their futures and forward currency contract mMargin accounts.
Amounts deposited as margin are restricted in terms of use and marketability. This smount is closely monitored by
the Class Fund.

The Class Fund holds the following derivetive instruments:

(@) Fufures

Futures are contractual obligations to buy or sell financial instrumenis on a future date at & specified price established
in an organized market. The fatare contracts are collateralized by cash or marketable securities, changes in the fiotures
conitracts’ value are setiled daily with the exchange. Fitures ase settled on a net basis.

At 30 November 2024, the Class Fund held the following concentrations in exchenge traded futures:

Net Notional Fair Value
Futures contracts, at fair value, net
Currencics 5 (2370,229) § 9,426
Energy (500,451) {135,290)
Financials 17,314,147 313,162
Grains {4,267,818) 1,411,927
Index 28,051,849 286,309
London Metals (2,070,353) (415,920)
Materials (979,595) 8,540
Meais 7,555,465 9,002
Metals 5,389,221 63,660

Total fatures contracts, at fair value, net 5 48622236 5 1,630,816
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Net Motional Fair Value
Futures contriets, at fair valus, net
Currencies 5 (684,644) § (12.575)
Energy {1,971,648) 552,831
Financials (113,906,321} (574,154)
Gruing 5,724,956 543,888
Index (2,766,999) £2,332
London Metals (3,304, 140) 94,360
Materials (40,5807 550
Meats (1,389,280) 6,102
Metals (1,388,010 (11,315)
Tatal fotures contraets, st fidr value, nel 5 (119, 716,666) 5 681,979
{b) Forward contracts
The following is & summary of open forward currency cantracts at 30 November 2024:
Unrealized Gain
AUD Class Specific 5 3
IFY Class Specific 48,203
Class Fund Specific 1,343,574
Total unrealized gain 5 2,292,090
Unrealized (Loss)
JFY Class Specific -1 (881)
Class Fund Specific {1,563,546)
Total unrealized (loss) 5 (1,564,427)
The following is a summary of open forward currency contracts &t 30 November 2023:
_Unrealized Gain
AUD Class Specific 5 8,142
JPY Class Specific 255,644
Class Fund Specific 444,307
Total unrealized 5 708,093

=1%5=
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“The following s a summury of open forwand currency contrascts at 30 November 2023;

Unrealized (Loss)
IFY Class Specific s (2,723)
Class Fond Specific {1,295,717)
Total unrealized (Joss) 5 {1,298, 440)

financial lin

As of 30 November 2024 and 30 November 2023, no fingncial instruments of the Class Fund are being presented net
within the statement of financial position (See Note 3 for gross emounts). The following tables provide information
on the financial impact of netting for instruments subject to an enforeeable master netting arrangement or similar
agroement in the event of default as defined under such agreements.

The following tebles summarize the gross end net financial essets end lisbilities per counterparty as st 30 November 2024:
Oifseiting of Financial Assets and Derbative Assets

Balwied Amousts mo set-offia the
Siwirmaral of Fisancial Posbtien
Cirons Amcants of Assch in
e Siatreent of Finsselsl Fimsueial Cnllaters]
Deseription CoumterParty FPealtien I rwmne ™ Regetvd™ Mot Amwant™!
Foreezds Bank of Wew York Mellon ] L ETL I (e - 5 A
Ferwasds Citbank 85T (Frs) - s
Forweds Deutsche Bank 0120 {528,258) . -
- TP Margan 3068570 {1,438,054) - 1E0A16
Margin Bank of Wew York Mellon 5,285,100 - - 3263100
Margm Citdbank A BB S - - 4 BLE D04
Margn Dewische Bk 270,228 st . 2401501
Margin TP Morgm S48 5 s > SR80
Due fombmker TP Morgan e - ‘ auE
Toial ] Do 1 el R T N 5 1P
Offeiting of Financial Lisbilities and Derivative Linbilities
Belnied Amounts mot set-aflin the
Sistement of Fizancisl Peaition
Giress Amowsis of
Lisbilities in e 5 tatvme mt Huanelal Callaters!
Deseription CoumterParty uf Finawelsl Panition Iastrwments ™ Pledged ™ Net Amoant™
Formands Dewsche Bank ] TGS § (a1 3 nmn -
Foreazds Bank of Bew York Mellon 8] (EA1) - -
Forwanis Chidank T2 (TTRE) - -
Fushizes TP Margmn 1AI0H {14385 ; =
Totdl 3 oo 3 S0 3 25 3 =

(1) Gros amourts of relited Anascisl intromests svadlable for offenl ut oot netled in the Strlemest of Financial Potition
(3 Gros mmounts of releted cash collsteral snd mangin bermewing avallable for olfsel bt ool setted in the Steesent of Finmcal Position.
(3]  Reywesenis the net meconts due o or from the ooumerpe ty is e eveot of defiall based on the contrechus] se-olf rights wder the sgroement.
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The following tables sumearize the gross end net financial assets and lishilities per counterparty as at 30 November 2023:
Offsetting of Financial Aseets and Derivative Assets
Relsted Amousts not sci-off lm the

Siwiement of Fi nenclal Poaition
Gress Amoumly of Asseby
im he Stwtement of Finmmeisl Callateral
Description CousterParty Fimaselsl Pasltion Instrements ' Reeelved ™ Net Amoust"™
Forvand Bank of Mew York Mellon £ 63786 3§ {2,723) 3 - 5 261 063
Forvards Citfhanic 200251 (201281} - .
Porwards Diiitsche Eiabk 2143006 [245,016) - -
Fobores JF Morpn 1150474 {1 468 495) - SELATS
Margn ek of Mew York Mellon 4415414 - - 4415414
Margn Citibask 2371557 £226,953) - 2 044,664
Margin Teitache Rk 1,020,767 {624ALT) 5 2396330
Margin 1P Morgmn 5,620,157 (S33&Y) - SSEETTS
Totad ] 19,185,562 % {2A20317) % = 5 16365348
Offsetting of Financial Lisbilitics and Derivative Lishilifies
Beleted Anpounts nat sei-of | n the
Statement of Fimanclal Pouition
Gress Amounts ol
Liabdnities Is the
&t of Flmsneisl Flnancial Callatersl
Dmcription CousterPurty Fenition  Instroments™  _ Pledged™  _Pet Amoos™
Forvards Drutsche Bari £ BE7431 3 [243018) 3 (B4 41T) S -
Forvanis Bank of New York Mellon 2,713 2,723) -
Forvards Citfbanik 428284 (2012813 (226,953) -
Futuees TP Morpee: 1 ABRAGS {1,468,455) - =
Dvoe o brolear TP Morgn 53,383 {5338} - -
Total 3 1820317 § (1968907 3 (514100 3 -

(1) Gress amounts of relsted finazclel inmrements avedable for offiel but not nerled i the Sostemens of Finnclel Position
(&) Ceross emounts-of relsted cash coflsteral mnd mergin bormewing evailshie for offset b oot setied in the Striement of Finencia] Position.
()  Erpresmis the net smoarts dee to o from the countorpe ty in e event off defmltl bsed on S contrectal se-off rights wnder the gpreement.

5. Helated party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making finencial or operational decisions.

Trustee and Manager

On 29 June 2011, CIBC Caribbesn Bank and Trust Compuny (Caymen) Limited (formerly “FirstCaribbeun
International Blnkmt]Trthm:qmy{Clymm}Lnnﬂn&"}hmm:ﬂnTmﬂn of the Trust. Pursuant to the Trust
Deed, the Trustee and Manager have suthority snd overnll responsibility for the Trust's sdministration and
‘management, which inchudes the responsibility for distribution end redemption of units f the Trust. The Trostes and
Manager have appointed Bank of Mew York Mellon (USA) to provide the administration of the Class
Fund. The Trustee is entitled to roceive oot of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01% per enmum of the net asset value
subject to & quarterty minimum fizc of 3,750, The Trustee's foc will be sccreed daily and calculated bascd on the net assct
value a3 a8 the immodiately procoding Valuation Deay (dadly) and payvable quarterly in srrears.

Queensgate (the “Manager™) entered into the Trust Deed with the Trustee noted sbove on 29 June 2011 and entered
into the Supplemental Trust Deed dated 27 January 2012 with the Trostes. The Menager prescribes management of
the Class Fund's assets and issue and reparchase of the units of the Class Fund.
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‘Trustee and Manager (continued)
mmumﬂdhm out of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01% per snmum of the net mset value
minimum fee of 33,750, ThuMmgz‘:fwwﬂ]b:mmdhly-ﬂnlwhhdhudmﬂunﬂ

Mwhumatdum-dmly;rmdmg\fahmﬂnﬂdﬂﬂmdmabh querterly in armears,

Agent and Distributor

On 27 January 2012, the Agent Company Agreement was entered into between Cuesnsgate and Mitsubishi UFT
Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Lad (the “Agent™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agreement pursuant to which
the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectoses regarding the units of the Class
Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers” Associstion (“JSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unit and submit the
documents such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent is entitled to receive a fee
of 0.05% per aonum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class Fund,

Omn 27 January 2012, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement wes entered into between the Manager and
the Agent, under which the Agent acts as Distributor of units in Japan subject to terms and conditions. The Distributor
is entitled to receive & fee of 0.95% per anoum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class
Fund. The Agent and Distributor's fee will be accrued daily and calculsted based on the net asset value as at the
immediately preceding Valuation Day end payshle quarterly in arrears.

Administration

The Trustee and the Manager on behall of the Clads Fund have entered ilo an Administrative Services Agrecmenl
with Bank of Mew York Mellon (USA) dated 27 January 2012, under which Bank of New York Mellon through its
Alternative Investment Services group (BNYM-AIS) acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. The fee payable to the
Administrator is based upon an agreed upon fes schedule included in the agreement. The foe is acorued daily and
payable quarterly in arrears. If the et assets of the Class Fund are less than 250 million then the foe will be 8 basis
points, if the net assets are between 250 million and 500 million then the fee will be 6 basis points, if the net assets
are greater than 500 million then the fie will be 4 basis points of the net assets of the Class Fund. However, there is
a minimum annual edministration fee of $89,000.

Investment Manager

Asset Management Cne International Ltd. (the “Investment Manzger™) has been appointed as [nvestment Meanager to
the Trust pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 27 January 2012, pursoant to which the Investment
Manager is suthorized to supervise and direct the mvestment and reinvestment of essets in each sccount, with full
suthority and at ity discretion. These functions were delegated from the Meanager to the Investment Meanager.

The Investment Manager is entitled to recgive & management fee of 0,63% per annum of the net asset value of the

Cless Fund. The fee is accrued daily and calculated based on the net asset value as at the immediately preceding
Vahation Day and is payable quarterly in errcars.

Sub-Investment Manager

The [nvestment Manager has delegated to Aspect Capital Limited (the “Sub-Investment Manager™) the responsibility
for the management of the investment and re-investment of the Class Fund's assets pursuant to the Sub-Investment
Management Agreement dated 27 Jamuary 2012,

The Sub-Investment Maneger is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund & management fiee of 1.5% per
annum of the net asset value of the portfolio in USD excluding the unrealized gaina/losses of the class hedging
transactions (Note 8) (the “Baseline Portfolic™). The fee is accrued daily and caleulsted based on the net asset value
as gt the immediately preceding Valuation Day and is payable monthly in arrears.
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Sub-Investment Manager (continued)

The Sub-Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a monthly performance fee
equal to 20,0% of the Net New Profits of the Baseline Portfolio as at the end of the month (“Caleulation Period”). Net
‘New Profits are the sum of (i) the net of all realized profits and losses of the Baseline Portfolio, plus (ii) the change in
net unrcalized profits and losses of the Bascline Portfolio, Leas (iii) the relevant fecs of the Class Fund (including feca
of Trustee, Manager, Administrator, Custodian, Distributor, Investment Manapger and Sub-Investment Manager),
which i3 upper limited to 3.25% per annum of the net asset value of the Baseline Portficlie, less (iv) all brokerage
commissions end transaction expenses, and less (v) iF Net New Profits as at the end of the last proceding Caleulation
Period was negative (8 "Cumulative Net Losa™), the amount of such Cumulstive Net Loas,

Custodian

Bank of New York Mellon (the “Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trostes
pursuant to @ custody agreement dated 27 January 2012, The Custodian is eatitled to receive out of the assets of the
Clzss Fund a fee of 0.02% per anmum of the net asset value, or such other fee 33 may be agreed between the Trustes
and the Custodian from time to time. The Custodian is also entitled to 8 transaction fee in accordance with its normal
scale, The fee is scerued deily and caleulated based on the net asset value as et the immedistely preceding Velustion
Day and is payable quarterly in arrears.

L Distribations

The Investment Mnager may direct the Administrator who shall act on behall of the Trustes 1o make distributions o
holders of any class of units. The distributions will be paid out of the income, realired and unrealizred capital pains
and/or any distributsble funds of the Class Fund attributable to the relevant ¢lass of units. Further, the Investment
Manager may direct the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee (o pay distributions out of the capital of the Class Fund
if considered necessary by the Investment Manager to maintain a reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fond.
During the period, the following disbursements were made:

Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Movember 2024 MNovember 2023
Distribution paid from AUD Class 5 - 8 (14,096)
5 - § (14,096)

8. Units in issue

Three classes of units, designated ms USD (USD hedged) class units, AUD (AUD hedged) closs units, JPY (JPY
hedged) class units, are available for subscription.

Initial Offer Period

Subscription of units by eligihle investors were avalleble during the initial ofler period at a subscription price oft
- USD (USD hedged) Class Unit - US£10.00 per Unit
- AUD {AUD hedged) Class Unit - AUD10.00 per Unit
- JFY (JPY hedged) Class Unit - ¥10,000 per Unit

Units which were subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period were issued on the 16 March 2012,
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8. Unifs in issue (continued)

Subsequent Subscriptions

Units of the spplicable class of units will be evailable for subscription at the relevant subscription price spplicable on
euch dealing day (daily). The subscription price per unit of a clazs of units will be the net asset value per unit of such
class of umits determined s =t the valustion point on the vebestion day falling on the relevent dealing day.

Minimum subscriptions

The minirmum subscription amount for USD (USD hedged) class units by an investor Is US$100 and in incremental
amounts of US$0.01 thereafter or 10 Units and in incremental amounts of 0.001 unit thereafter. The minimum
subscription amount for AUD (AUD hedged) class units is AUDI00 and in incremental amounts of AUDO.01
thereafter or 10 units and in incremental amounts of 0.001 Unit thereafter. The minimum sobscription amount for the
IFY (JPY hedged) class units is ¥10,000 and in incrementa] amounts of ¥1 thereafter or 1 unit and in incremental
amounts of 0.001 unit thereafter.

Redemplions

The units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder on each dealing day at the repurchase price,
provided thet the redemption notice hes been received by the Administrator not less than | business day prior to the
relevant dealing day. The repurchase price per unit will be the net asset value per unit of the relevent class of units
determined as at the valustion point on the valuation day falling on the relevant dealing day.

Unit transactions during the year ended 30 November 2024 are as follows:

Class Clasa Class
UISD hedged ALD hedged JPY hodged
(usD") ("AUD") (IPY™) Total
Units at beginning of year 1,143,340 101,132 384,722 1,631,194
Units issued during the year 1278221 53,484 300,554 1,632.299
Units redeemad ﬂnh;thurw (139, 266) (63 853) fl?!l'?lﬂ'} (415,540}
Met Asset Value per Unit 5 1204 AUS 9,46 ¥ 5, 70653

Unit transsctions during the year ended 30 November 2023 are as follows:

Class Class Class
USD bedged AU hedged JPY hedged
(*UsDm (“AUDTY (JPY™) Totsl

Units st beginning of year 790,328 50,754 357,574 1,247,656
Units issued during the year 630,612 158,304 59,680 867,596
Units redeemed during the yesr (295,600} {147,925) {40.532) (484,058)
Units at the end of year 1,143,340 101,132 386,722 1,631,194
Net Asset Value per Unit ] 1263 AUS 1003 ¥ 10,650.68
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8. Unify in issue (continued)

‘The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these units, In accordance with the objectives outlined in Note 1
and the risk mmnagement policies in Note 9, the Class Fund endeavars to invest the subscriptions received from the
As at 30 November 2024 and 2023, all units of the Class Fund were held by one Unitholder.

3. Finsncial risk mansgement
Financial risk factors

‘The Class Fund's activities expose it to 2 variety of financial risks: market risk (inchuding price risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk end lquidity risk,

The Class Fund is also exposed to operational risks such as custody risk. Custody risk is the risk of loss of securitics
held in custody occasioned by the insolvency or negligence of the custodian. Although an approprisie logal framework
i3 inm place that eliminates the risk of loss of value of the securitics held by the custodian, in the event of its failure, the
ability of the Class Fund o transfer securities might be temporarily impaired.

The Class Fund's overall risk management program seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to
‘which the Class Fund is exposed and secks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate certain risk exposures.

All securities imvestments present a risk of loas of capital. The maximum loss of capital on long debt securities is
limited to the fuir value of those positions, O short futures positions the muxirmum loss of capital can be unlimited.
The maximum loss of capital on long firtures and forward currency contracts is limited to the notional contract velues
of those positions,

Market risk

) Price risk
The Class Fund is exposed to debt securities and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Class
Fund for which prices in the fiture are uncertain, Where non-monetary financial instroments are denominated in
currencies other than the LTSD, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into USD will also
flucteite because of changes in forelgn exchange rates. Paragraph (b) ‘Foreign exchange risk’ below sets out how
this component of price risk is managed and measured.

Derivatives include instruments and contracts, the value of which is linked to one or more underlying securities,
finencial benchmarks or indices. The value of a derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlying
asset. Many derivatives provide significantly more market exposure then the money paid or deposited when the
transaction is emtered into. A relatively small adverse market movement can result not only in the loss of the entire
investment, but mxy also expose the Class Fund to the possibility of a loss exceeding the orignal amount mvested.
There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish to acquire will be made svailable st oy particular
times on satisfactory terms or et all.

The Class Fund's policy s lo menage price risk through diversification and selection of securitles and other financial
instruments within specified limita set by the poverning decuments of the Class Fund.

At 30 November, the fair valoe of debt and related derivatives exposed to price risk are summarized in Notes 3 and 4.
Inclnded in Note 4 is the Class Fund's notional exposure on derivative contracts as well as the indusiry exposure,

=2 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financisl risk management {continued)

‘The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund's investment strutegy to tack a benchmark or any other
index. At 30 November 2024, the Class Fund's market risk is affected by three main components: changes in actual
mariket prices, interest rute end foreign currency movements. If the pertfolio (excluding futures contructs) st 30
‘Wovember 2024 had increased hy 10% with all other varishlez held constant, this would have incressed net assets
attributable to Unitholder by approximately § 3,863,135 (2023: $2,178,178). Conversely, if the portfolio {exchding
futires contracts) at 30 November 2024 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net assets attributeble to
Unitholder by approximately ($3,863,135) (2023: ($2,178,178)).

The seasitivity analyses presented above is based upon the portfolio composition (excluding firares contracts) as at
30 November. The composition of the Class Fund's investment portfolio is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analyses prepared as at 30 November are not necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's pet assets in the foture,

At 30 November 2024, hed the notional value of futures contracts (excluding financial fitures with notionel of
$17,314,147 subject to interest rate risk) increased or decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
increase or decrease respectively in net assets stiributable to Unitholder is shown below:

Incressefdecrense (+/-)

MAY impact of
Net Notiooal 10%% notional
Futures contracts
Currencies 5 (2,370,229) 237,023
Energy (500,451) 50,045
Grains (4,267,318) 426,782
Index 268,051,849 2,805,185
London Metals (2,070,353) 207,035
Materials (979,595) 97,960
Meats 7,335,463 735,547
Metals 3,889,231 583922
Total fatures contracts net notional 5 31,308,089

At 30 November 2023, hed the notional value of futures contracts (excluding financial futures with notional of
(%113,906,321) subject to interest rate risk) incroased or decreased by 10% with all other veriables held constant, the
increase or decrease respeciively in net assets siiributable io Unitholder is shown below:

Increasa/decrease (+-)

MNAY impact of
Net Notional 10°%% notional
Futures contracts
Currencies 5 (684,844) § 68,464
Energy (1.971,648) 197,165
Grrains 5,724,956 572,496
Index (2,766,999) 76,700
London Metals (3,304,140 330,414
Materials (40,580) 4,058
Ments {1,389,280) 138,928
Metals (1,388,010) 138,801
Total fatures confracts net notional 5 (5,820,345)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financisl risk management {continued)

‘The sensitivity mnalyses presented above are based upon the future contructs in the portfolio only as at 30 November.
The composition of the Class Fund's futures contracts is expected to chamge over time.  Accordingly, the sensitivity
anakyses prepared s ot 30 November are not necessurily indicative of the effect on the Class Fund’s net assets in the
future,

The Sub-Investment Manager aimas 1o deliver the Class Fund's investment objective through the implementation of a
systematic quantiative investment program. The program spplies a fully sysmematic and broadly diversified global
trading system which deploys multiple trading strategies that, primarily through the use of listed futores and forwand
carrency contracts, seek to identify and exploit directional moves in the market behavior of a broad range of financial
instruments and other assets including (but not limited to) currencies, interest rates, equities, equity indices, debt
securities (inchiding bonds) and commodities (including energy, metal and agricoltural commodities).

By maintaining comparatively small exposure to any individuel mardeet and mainizining positions in & variety of
contracts, the Sub-Investment Manager nims to achieve Jong term diversification. The Class Fund's policy is to
manage price risk through diversification. Generally, the program maintwins positions in the majority of traded
merkets, Market concentration veries according to the strength of signals, volstility and liquidity amongst other
factors, The emphasis is upon structuring a genuinely diversified set of market risk allocations thet is designed to
maximize the probability of retuns wherever profit opportunities appear. Market exposures ere monitored daily and
the level of exposure of the program in each market is quantifiable 2t all times and changes in accordance with market
volsiility and liquidity.

The program employs a folly automated systemn to collect, process and analyze market data (including current and
historical price data) and identify and exploit directional moves in market behavior. The program trades scross a
varicty of frequencies to exploit trends over & renge of timescales. Positions arc taken according to the aggregate
gignal and are adjusted to control risk.

bl Forsizn currency risk:

‘The Class Fund operates internationally and holds both monetery and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies
other then the USD, the functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in IFRS 7, arises as the value of fitture
transactions, recognized monetary assets and monetary lizbilities denomineted in other currencies fluctuete due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. IFRS 7 considers the foreign exchenge exposure relating to non-monetary asssts
and lishilities to be a component of mariket price risk and not foreign currency risk. The Class Fund monitors the
exposure on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities,

The table below summarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets and lisbilities, which ere denominated in 8 currency
other then the LISD at 30 November 2024,

Coonceatration of foreign curreacy assets and linhilities
{expressed in USD) CHF EUR HKD KBW MYR SGD THB TRY

Aot 120,625 46,799 15751 754353 110239 22,645 239,984 168,335
(expressedinUSD)  AUD CAD GBP  JPY SEK  ZAR

Liabilities (23,245) (45,061) (134,918) (1,158) (15,863) (5,690)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

2. Finsncisl risk management {continued)

“The table below summarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets and linbilities, which are denominated in a curmency
other thun the USD st 30 November 2023,

Concentration of foreign curreacy assets and linbilities

{expressed in USDY) CHF EUR HEKD KRW MYR SEK SGD THB TRY
AStels 13,822 33486 45554 325295 10,200 200,835 144 20,068 107,116
{expressad in 175D AUD CAD GBP JPY

Lishilities (33,689) (56,018) (BS5856) (453827)

The table below summarizes the sensitivity of te Class Fund's net monetary assets and Habilities to chenges in foreign
exchange mavements at 30 November 2024. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign
exchange rate increased/decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all other veriables
held constant.

{expresaad in USD) CHF EUR HED KRW MYR SGD THB TRY

Chenge in exchenge rate 0% 10%  10% 0% 1% 10% 0% 10%

Met change in NAY 12,963 4,880 1,575 75435 11,024 2265 23998 16,634

{expressed in USDY) AUD CAD GBP JPY SEK ZAR

Change in exchenge rate 0% 10% 10% 0% 1% 10%

Net change in NAV (2,325) (4,506) (13,492) (116} (1,586) (569)

The table below summearizes the sensitivity of the Class Fund’s net monetary assets and Labilities to changes in foreign
exchange movements et 30 November 2023, The enalysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign
exchange rate increased/decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all other varisbles
held constant.

{expressed in U/SIY) CHF EUR HKD KRW MYR SEK S5GD THE TRY ZAR
Change in exchenge mte 10%% 0% 1% 10%  10% 10%  10% 10% 10% 10%
Met change in NAY 1382 3349 4555 32,529 1,020 20,084 14 2,000 10,712 596

{expressed in USD) AUD CAD GBP IPY
Change in exchange rate 1044 10%% 1% 10%
Net change in NAV (3,369) (5,602) (3,586) (4,581)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 M 2024

2. Finsncisl risk management {continued)

The Class Fund may have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment of the Class Fund's
assets in bonds end short-term money market instruments denominated in currencies other than USD, When
investments are made in non-US Dollar denominated bonds and short-term money market instruments, the Cless Fund
enters into currency hedging transactions. Such transactions are designed to reduce, but not eliminate, exchange-rate
igk end protect all or any part of the assets of the Class Fund from a depreciation in the foreign curency against the
Ush.

With respect to the AUD and JPY classes (Note 8), the Class Fund enters into currency hedging transactions for the
Unitholders of sach classes.

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volstile, highty specialized and highly
technical. Significant changes, including changes i liquidity and prices, can occur in such markets within very short
periods of time, often within minwtes.

Excleding forwards, as st 30 November 2024, the Class Fund's financial assets and lishilities at fair value throogh
profit or loss are USD denominated, except for $690,923 (2023: $32,909) in futures contracts,

At 30 November 2024, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD increased or decreased by
10% with all other variables beld constant, the increase of decréase respectively in net assets atiributable to Unitholder
is shown below.

Unrealized gain (loas) of Increase/decrease {+/-)
forward contracts at NAY impact of 10%
30 November 2024* chanpe in FX rate
AUD-USD (27,176} 182,768
BRL -USD 138,150 231,447
CAD-USD 175330 1,947 467
CHF - EUR (58,382) 5307
CHF - USD 31,922 1,141,808
CLP-USD 72446 327,755
CHH - USD 55,226 334 477
COP - USD 5,425 124,458
CZK - EUR (130} 11
EUR - GBP 33,486 3,044
EUR - HUF (20,845) 1,895
EUR - JPY {131,433} 11,948
EUR -NOK 45,800 4,163
EUR - PLN 110338 10,030
EUR - SEK {107,155) 9,741
EUR - USD 51,598 402,298
GBP - USD (95,984) 191,008
IDR. - USD (6,728) 39,327
IS -UsSD (180,938) 583,086
INR.- USD (BBS) 64,911
JPY - USD {145.916) 649,592
KRW -UsSD 20,173 157,983
MXN - USD (29,656) 277,963
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR DED 3 NOVEMBER 2024
2. Financial risk magagement {continued)
Unrealized gain (loss) of Increase/decreanse (+1-)
forward contructs at MAY impact of 10%
Currency 30 November 2024* change in FX rate
NZD - USD L4 (8,975} 251,560
PEN - USD (14,158) 31,415
PHF - USD {1,946} 45,195
5GD - USD (12,695) 73,731
THB - USD (625T) 30,526
TWD - USD 49,772 505,023
USD - ZAR {160,358) 528,964
s (219,972)
* Total excludes the impact of forward currency contracts used for class hedging,
Unrealized gain (loss) of
fatures contracts
denominated in foreign Increase/decrease (+/-)
currencles at NAY impact of 10%
Currency 30 November 2024** change in FX rate
AUD £ 11,668 1,167
CAD 253,916 25392
CHF (9,418) 942
EUR 219,500 21,960
GBP 112,511 11,251
HED (13.911) 1,391
Y {36,690) 3,669
KRW 164,858 16,486
MYR 5,120 513
SEK 1,101 110
SGD (2,052) 200
THB (2.885) 289
TRY (15,468) 1,547
FAR 2602 260
5 690,923

** Total excludes UISD amognts,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financial risk magagement (continued)

At 30 November 2023, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD increased or decreased by
10% with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets sttributable to Unitholder

is shown below.

Unrealized gain (Joss) of Increase/decrease (+/-)
forward contracts at NAY impsct of 10%
Currency 30 November 2023% change in FX rate
AUD -USD 8 (37.550) g 62,821
BRL - UsD {2,834) 344,712
CAD-USD (67,901) 506,790
CHF - EUR (14.387) 1,308
CHF - USD (130,594%) 423,059
CLP-USD (38.520) 123,892
CNH - USD {46,595) 139,660
COP-USD {6,194) 179,361
CZK - EUR (10,749) 77
EUR - GEF 50z 3,183
EUR. - HUF 3594 363
EUR - JPY 10,264 933
EUR.-NOK (80,447) 7314
EUR-FLN 36,351 3,304
EUR. - SEK (174,937) 15,904
EUR - USD (50,524) 70,851
GBF - UsD 7,964 145,191
IDR - USD (9,568) 30,957
ILS - USD (100,950) 176,005
INR. - USD £1,600% 144,840
JPY - USD (105,753) 710,575
ERW -USD (15,426) 191,342
MXN -USD 43,102 339311
NZD-USD (19,011} 46,203
PEN - USD {1,596) 15,160
PHP - USD (1,609) 20,161
8GD - USD (16,004) 296,500
THB - UsD £1,205) 95,120
TWD - USD (48,165) 309,818
USD - ZAR {5,523) 29,448
$ (8514100

* Total excludes the impact of forward curmency contracts used for class bedging,

=27=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR DED 3 M 2024
2. Financial risk magagement {continued)
Unrealized gain (loss) of
futures contracts
denominated in foreign Imcrease/decrease (+-)
carrenciea at MAY impact of 10%
Currency 30 November 2023%* change in FX rate
AUD (6,154} 619
CAD (64,948) 6,495
CHF (14,478) 1,448
EUR 18,262 1,826
GBP 188,514 18,861
HED 152,672 15,267
Y 3218 i
KRW (17,965) 1,796
MYR 113 11
SEK (196,2%9) 19,630
5GD 798 B0
THR (3,071) a7
TRY {13,708) 1371
ZAR (8,107 g1l
32,309
** Total excludes USD emounts,
In accordance with the Class Fund®s policy, the Sub-Investment Meanager monitors the Class Fund's net currency
position on & daily basis.

£} Interest rate risk
The Class Fund's exposure to changes in interest rates relates to the Class Fund's investments in fixed rate debt

securities, Government debt secyrities represent zero coupon securities with maturities es follows:

As at 30 November 2024

U. 5. Treasury Bills

As at 30 November 2023;

U. 8. Treasury Bills

The value of fixed income assets mey chenge based on interest rate fluctustions. Typically, when interest rates
increase, the value of Axed income assets tend to depreciate. On the comtrary when mterest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income asset will depend

(LSS 38,162,000 notional)

(USS 22,880,000 notional)

Additionally, ot 30 November 2024, the Class Fund holds financial futures contracts with net notional of $17,314,147
{30 November 2023: ($113,906,321)) and maturities ranging from 1 moath to 3 years.

Maturity
2024-1025

Matrity
2023-2024

on a number of factors including the maturity and conditions of issusnce of the fixed mcome asset.

At 30 November 2024 and 2023, should intercst rales have lowered by 100 basis points with all other variables

Temaining constent, the impact on net assets atributable o Unitholder would not be material to the Class Fund,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financial risk magagement (continued)

In sccordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's overall interest
sensitivity on a daily basis,

Credif risk

The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instroment will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The main concentretion to which the Clazs Fund is exposed arises from the Class Fund's imvestments in debt securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, margin accounts, cash and
cash equivalents, amounts due from brokers and other receivable balances. The Class Fund seeks to mitigate its
mmuﬂi:ﬁkh}p&ﬁmiﬂmﬂhmmmmmﬁuuﬁﬁywﬂhwm

At 30 November 2024 portfolio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as follows:

_Credit Rating S Amount % of NAV
U. 8. Treasury Bills AM+ 37,903,684 6330

At 30 November 2023 portfolio by rating category for cach class of delbt sccurities is as follows:

Cradit Rating $ Amonant % of NAY
1. 5. Treasury Bills ANt 22,372,123 s2.02

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit Josses using probability of default, exposure et default and
loss given default Mansgement considers both historical anelysis and forward-looking mformation in determining
any expected credit boss. Cash and cesh equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist
primarily of call balances end placements with an original maturity of 3 months or less from placement. The cash
nqmlmnmMdeﬂmYﬂMﬂh(ﬁﬁhﬂummmdﬂmmmmmﬂ
to pose a significant credit risk.

At 30 November 2024, all of the Class Fund's finsncial mstruments were held by Bank of New York Mellon, Deutsche
Bank, Citihank, JF Morgan (Movemnber 2023: Bank of New York Mellon, Deutsche Bank, Citibank, JP Morgan). The
brokerd are members of a mador securities exchange and al 30 November 2024 hid S&P credit eatings of A, A, BRB+
and A respectively (30 Movember 2023: A, A, BBB+ and A-), respectively. Although the Class Fund monitors the
‘brokerd, and believes that they are appropriate costodians, there is no goarantes that they will not become insalvent
While both the U.S. Bankruptcy Code end the Secorities Investor Protection Act of 1970 scek to protect customer
property in the event of a failore, insolvency or liguidation of a broker dealer, there is no certainty that, in the event
of a failure of a broker dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incar Insses doe to (i)
its assets being unavailable for a period of time, and (i) ultimately receiving less than full recovery of its asseis, or
(Lii) both. As substantially all of the Class Funds assets are custodied with four costodians (30 November 2023; four),
such loases could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Class Fund to achleve its investment
objective. Management considers the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a strong
capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, po loss allowance has been recognized
‘based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Class Fund.

All ransactions are setthed/paid for upon delivery using epproved brokers, The risk of default is considered minimal,

as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received peyment. Payment is made on @ purchase
once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fisil if either party fails to meet its obligetion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 3 M 2024

2. Financial risk magagement {continued)
‘The counterparties to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative contrects are major financial institutions.

Management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund. In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager
monitors the Class Fund's credit position on a daily basis.

The maimum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements at 30 November 2024 is the carrying amount
of the financial assets as set out in the Statement of Financial Position.

Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk thet the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do o on terms that are materially dissdvantageous,

The Class Fund is exposed to the daily scttloment of margin calls on derivatives and to daily cash redemptions of
redoemable shares. Tts policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in investments thal are traded in an active
market and can be readily disposed. Only & limited proportion of its assets in investments are not ectively traded on
a siock exchange.

The Class Fund enters inta futures and foreard contracts which to varying degrees, represent a markoet risk in excess
of the amount reflected on the Class Fund's Statement of Financial Position. The notional amount of the contract
represents the extent of the Class Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Maricet risks associated with
such contracts arise due to the possible movements in foreign exchange retes, indices, and securities values underlying
these instruments. Crther market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the
contracts, thet the change in the value of the contract may not directly comelate with changes in the value of the
underlying currencies, commodities, indices, or securities, or that the counterparty to the fatures of forwird contract
defiults on its obhligation to perform under the terms of the confract.

The table below enalyses the Class Fund's derivetive finencial labilities thet will be settled on & gross basis imto
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date (o the earliest
contractual maturity date, The amounts in the table ere the contractual undiscounted cash flowa,

3 moaths 3 months Crestor Total
30 MNovembar X4 of kess to 12 months than 1 year alan ca
Financial kabilites at far valus through proflt or loss
{net settled derhratives) $ naEs) § 0 (19es1n 8 (9317 § (300421
30Movember X023

Finaneial kbiities an fui valus through profi or loas
{net setiled derivatives) § (Ranise § (27439 5§ 75 § (2765535

-30-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financial risk magagement (continued)

The Class Fund's non-derivative financial habilities are due within 3 months of the Statement of Financial Position
date.

Fair value disclosures:

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurement using a fair vahue hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in malding the measurements. The fair value hisrarchy has the following
lovels:

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicel assets or Libilities (level 1).

*  Inputs other than quoted prices incloded within level 1 that are observable for the asset or isbility, either directly
(that is, s prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level ).

*  Inputs for the asset or Liahility that are not based on observable market data (that is, onobservable imputs) (level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair valoe measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement in its eatirety. For this purposs,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair valoe measurement in its entirety. [Fa fair valoe measurement
‘uses obsarvahle inparts thet require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measorement is a level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
considers observable data to be that merket ditn that is readily svailable, regularty distributed or updated, relinble and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the relevant market.

The lollowing table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities (by clasa)
measured ai fulr value ai 30 November 2024:

Total
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
1.5, Treasury Bills 5 IT05.684 5 - § = § 37503684
Forward currency contracts - 2292 090 - 2207 090
Futures 3,068,870 - - 3,068,870
Total assets 5 40972554 5 229209 § - 5 43,264,544
Total
Linbilitics Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balunce
Forward currency contracts  § - % (1,564,427) % - § (1,564,42T)
Futures (1,438,054) - - (1,438,054}

Tatal Habilities §  (1A3B05) 5  (1564427) 3 - §_ (3,002,481)

=31 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

2. Financial risk magagement (continued)

“The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Cliss Fund's finencial assets and liabilities (by class)
mensured st fuir value st 30 November 2023;

Taotal
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balamce
.5, Treasury Bills 5 22375123 % - 8 - § 22372123
Foreard currency contracts - TOE,093 - T0E,093
Furures 2,130,474 - - 2,130,474
Total assets 5 24522597 8 708093 S - § 25230690
Total
Liabflities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Forenrd curency contrects s - 5 (L296,440) 35 = §  (1,298.440)
Futures (1,468,495) - - (1,468,495)
Total linbilities §_ (1468455 s  (1298,440) % = §_ (2,766,935)

Investments whose vahses are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1,
US sovereign obligations. The Class Fund doss not adjust the quoted price for thess insmaments,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.
These include certain non-mvestment-grade sovereign obligations, most investment-grade corporate bomds,
investments in other funds where redemption is not restricted, thinly treded listed equities and some over-the-counter
derivatives. As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or ere subject to trensfer

restrictions, valurtions mey be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or pon-transferability, which are generally based on
available marke: mformation.

Imvestmierts classified within level 3 have significant unobservable imputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices are not available for these securities, vahuation techniques are used to derive the fair value, At
30 November, the Class Fund held no level 3 mvestments.

Investments are carried at fair value. The camrying vahues of all other financial assets and lisbilities are considered to
approximate fair vahie due to the shori-term matarity of those instruments.

Cash end cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held with banks. Margm represents colleteral cash
deposits held in respect of open exchange-traded futures contracts and forward cumency exchange. Cash and cash
equivalents and margin sccounts have been determined using level | nputs.

Subscriptions receivable and other assets include the contractusl amounts for settlement of other obligetions due to

the Class Fund. Payables and accreals represent the contractusl amounts and obligations due by the Class Fund for
settlement of redemptions and expenses. These receivables and payablea have been determined using level 2 inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED M NOVEMBER 2024

The putteble yalue of Participating Units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
limhilities of the Class Fund in sccordance with the Cless Fund's governing documents. These Participating Uinfts are
not traded on mn active market. A demand festure is sttached to these units, as they are redeemable at the Unitholder's
opticn and can be put beck to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash squal to & proportionate share of the Class
Fund®s net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (MNotes 2 and ). The fair value is based on the amount payable
on demand, discounted from the first date that the emount could be required to be peid. The impact of discounting in
this instance is not material. As such, Lewel 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorization for net asscts
attributable to the Unitholder,

11. Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund enter into contracts that contain
a variety of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Trustee's and Manager's
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would mvolve future claims thet may be made
against the Trustee and the Manager that have not yet occurred, however, based on experience, management expects
the risk of Loss to the Class Fund to be remote.

12, Subsequent cventy
Management has performed & subsequent events review from | December 2024 through to 18 February 2023,

During this period there were subscriptions amounting to $2,602,310 and redemptions amounting to $1,570,485
respectively. There are no other subseqoent events to report that relate to the Class Fand.
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UPPLEMENTARY (1] OF AUDITED]
YEAR ENDED 30 NOYEMBER 2024

Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized Gain

Buy USD 5,302,619 and Sell BRL 30,427,680 03 Decomber 2024 ¢ 231,726
Buy JFY 10,315,593 end Scll USD 63,145 04 Decomber 2024 828
Buy AUD 50,000 and Sell USD 32,347 18 December 2024 291
Buy CAD 982,664 and Sell USD 700,000 18 December 2024 2,623
Buy CLP 685,522,672 and Sell USD 700,000 18 December 2024 3,630
Buy CNH 2,899,223 and Sell USD 400,000 18 December 2024 219
Buy COP 448,007,660 and Sell USD 100,000 18 December 2024 733
Buy CZK 30,371,923 and Sell EUR 1,200,000 18 Diecember 2024 1,604
Buy EUR 250,000 and Sell CHF 231,580 18 December 2024 1,063
Buy EUR 2,550,000 and Sell HUF 1,050,374,176 18 December 2024 10,760
Buy EUR 375,000 and Sell SEK 4,313,871 18 December 2024 182
Buy EUR B00,000 and Scll USD 341,220 18 December 2024 5722
Buy ILS 1,825,853 and Sell USD 500,000 18 December 2024 3,335
Buy JFY 589,143,659 and Scll EUR 3,650,000 18 December 2024 83,280
Buy JPY 167,105,810 and Sell USD 1,100,000 18 December 2024 19,664
Buy MXMN 5,171,456 and Sell USD 250,000 18 December 2024 3408
Buy NZD 50,000 and Sell USD 29,509 18 December 2024 136
Buy NOK 101,985,229 and Sell EUR 8,675,000 18 December 2024 64,627
Buy PEN 2,264,081 and Sell USD 600,000 18 December 2024 2,025
Buy PHP 8,799,300 and Sell USD 150,000 18 December 2024 62
Buy PLN 39,168,999 and Sell EUR 9,000,000 18 Docember 2024 110,358
Buy 5GD 134,437 and Sell USD 100,000 18 December 2024 08
Buy ZAR 24,033,096 md Sell USD 1,325,000 18 December 2024 4,697
Buy KRW 1,542,065,830 and Sell USD 1,100,000 18 December 2024 5,752
Buy SEK B63,414 and Seil EUR 75,000 18 December 2024 2
Buy CHF 1,307,477 and Sell EUR. 1,400,000 18 December 2024 6,147
Buy TWD 27,621,238 and Sell LUSD 350,000 18 Decamber 2024 1,617
Buy THE 5,174,554 and Sell USLD 150,000 18 December 2024 1,081
Buy GBP 13,828,682 and Sell EUR 16,600,000 18 December 2024 43,487
Buy GBP 50,000 and Sell USD 63 439 18 December 2024 261
Buy USD 1,411,453 and Sell AUD 2,150,000 18 December 2024 8,057
Buy USD 20,050,000 and Sell CAD 27,798,181 18 December 2024 173,800
Buy USD 8,450,000 and Sell CHF 7,381,638 18 December 2024 47,503
Buy USD 4,000,000 and Sell CLP 1,826,408,392 18 December 2024 72,469
Buy USD 5,050,000 and Sell CNH 36,173,271 18 December 2024 56,510
Buy USD 2,625,000 and Sell COP 11,363,401,333 18 December 2024 69,972
Buy USD 4,018,268 and Scll EUR 3,750,000 18 December 2024 48223
Buy USD 2,055,617 and Scll GBP 1,600,000 18 December 2024 17,239
Buy UISD 100,000 and Sell IDR. 1,576,900,000 18 December 2024 525
Buy USD 600,000 and Sell INR. 50,702,879 18 December 2024 685
Buy USD 4,850,000 and Sell KRW 6,741,768,100 18 December 2024 15,755
Buy USD 4,650,000 and Sell MXN 93,620,418 18 Decamber 2024 62485
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YEAR DED 3 NOVEMBER 2024
Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized Gain
Buy USD 1,718,388 and Sell NZD» 2,875,000 18 December 2024 ¢ 13,844
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell PHP 2,931,800 18 December 2024 1
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell SGD 66,227 18 December 2024 487
Buy USD 200,000 and Sell THB 6,544,087 18 December 2024 148
Buy USD 5,675,000 and Sell TWD 182,461,415 18 December 2024 49,367
Buy USD 475,000 and Sell ZAR 8,401,170 18 December 2024 10,182
Buy AUD 847,076 and Sell USD 552,671 30 December 2024 31l
Buy JPY 4,748,577,761 and Sell USD 30,926,974 30 December 2024 447,377
Buy USD 2,450,000 and Sell BRL 14,229 43¢ 03 Junuary 2025 87,283
5 2,292,090
Forward Coniracts Maturity Date Unrealired (Loss)
Buy BEL 30,427,680 and Sell USD 5,250,000 03 December 2024 g (179,107
Buy AUD 2,100,000 and Sell USD 1,393,983 18 December 2024 (23,221
Buy CAD 69,419 and Sell USD 50,000 18 December 2024 {364)
Buy CLP 242,713,670 and Sell USD 250,000 18 December 2024 &7
Buy CNH 5,044,221 end Sell USD 1,250,000 18 December 2024 (1,503)
Buy COF 6,382,033,525 and Sell USD 1,500,000 18 December 2024 (65,018)
Buy CZK 5,051,567 and Sell EUR 200,000 18 December 2024 (169
Buy EUR 5,500,000 and Sell CHF 5,172,363 18 December 2024 (64,953)
Buy EUR 1,450,000 and Sell CZK 36,690,501 18 December 2024 (1,565)
Buy EUR 1,850,000 and Sell GBP 1,542,842 12 December 2024 (7,005)
Buy EUR 600,000 and Sell HUF 248,569,464 18 December 2024 (1,1109
Buy EUR 4,500,000 snd Sell JPY 743,062,913 18 December 2024 (214,713)
Buy EUR 14,775,000 and Sell SEK 171,211,500 18 December 2024 (107,357T)
Buy HUF 959,953,090 and Sell EUR 2,350,000 18 December 2024 {30,495)
Buy IMR. 105,618,902 and Sell USD 1,250,000 18 December 2024 (1,570)
Buy IDR 14,965,437,752 and Sell USD 950,000 18 Diecember 2024 (59413
Buy MXN 49,228 752 and Sell USD 2,500,000 18 December 2024 (87,731)
Buy NZD 350,000 and Sell USD 209,833 18 December 2024 (2,324)
Buy NOK 49,699,055 and Scll EUR 4,275,000 18 December 2024 (18,827
Buy PEN 2,612,911 and Sell USD 700,000 18 December 2024 (5,220)
Buy PLN 214,952 and Sell EUR 50,000 18 December 2024 (30)
Buy 5G0 1,790,773 and Sell USD 1,350,600 18 December 2024 (11,184)
Buy ZAR. 101,401,828 and Sell USD 5,775,000 18 December 2024 (164,668)
Buy KR'W 486,829,685 and Sell USD 350,000 18 December 2024 (914)
Buy SEK 287,667 and Sell EUR 25,000 18 December 2024 )
Buy CHF 185,450 and Sell EUR 200,000 18 December 2024 (639
Buy TWD B,098,914 and Sell USD 250,000 18 December 2024 (295)
Buy THB 8,553,034 and Sell USD 250,000 18 December 2024 (278)
Buy GBP 1,036,394 and Sell BUR. 1,250,000 18 December 2024 {2.596)
Buy GBP 3,500,000 and Sell USIx 4,538,884 18 December 2024 (79,5932)
Buy USD 1,815,378 and Sell AUD 2,800,000 18 December 2024 (12,301)
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell CAD 490,517 18 December 2024 (729)
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UPPLEMENTARY DULE OF AUDITED
YEAR ENDED 30 NOVEMBER 2024
Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized (Loss)
Buy USD 3,000,000 and Sell CHF 2,649,204 18 December 2024 ¢ (15,581)
Buy USD 300,000 and Sell CLP 294,993,930 18 December 2024 (2,790)
Buy 113D 225,000 tnd Sell COP 1,001,843,140 18 Decomber 2024 (2623
Buy USD 897,530 and Sell EUR 850,000 18 December 2024 (2,347
Buy USD 4,361,701 and Seil GBP 3,450,000 18 December 2024 (33,552)
Buy USD 450,000 and Sell IDR 7,154,296,309 18 December 2024 (1,312)
Buy USD 6,150,000 and Sell ILS 22,977,717 18 December 2024 (184,293)
Buy USD 7,450,000 and Sell JPY 1,136,597,995 18 December 2024 (165,580)
Buy USD 200,000 and Sell KRW 279,503,145 18 December 2024 (420)
Buy USD 250,000 and Sell MXN 17,506,058 18 December 2024 (7.818)
Buy USD 2,128,576 and Sell NZD 3,625,000 18 December 2024 {20,632)
Buy USD 1,600,000 and Sell PEN 6,058,469 18 Drecember 2024 10,963)
Buy USD 550,000 end Scll PHP 32,368,449 18 December 2024 (2,009)
Buy USD 650,000 and Sell SGD 872,780 18 December 2024 {2,506)
Buy 1ISD 500,000 and Sell THB 17,371,983 18 December 2024 (7,208)
Buy USD 525,000 and Sell TWD 17,057,564 18 December 2024 917
Buy USD 1,175,000 and Sell ZAR 21,428,114 18 December 2024 (10,569)
Buy USD 68,361 and Sell IPY 10,315,593 30 December 2024 (881)
Buy BRL 290,573 and Sell USD 50,000 03 January 2025 (1,752
5 (1SeaaT)
Average Market Unrealized
Holding ParValue  Direction  Book Price Price Gain/{Loss)
U.5. Treasury Bill 05/122024 3 900,000 Long 3,897,851 3,898,555 § 704
11,8, Treasury Bill 014092025 2,900,000 Long 2 885,350 2,886,251 901
U.S. Treasury Bill 01/162025 3 900,000 Long 2,684,747 2 684,859 112
LS. Tressury Bill 017232025 4,612,000 Long 4,582,462 4,582,498 16
UL.5. Treasury Bill 013072025 10,200,000 Long 10,122,635 10,125,590 2,955
UL5. Treasury Bill D2062025 4 550,000 Long 4,809,975 4,810,877 002
U.S. Treasury Bill 021372025 3 500,000 Long 3,468,356 3,468,737 381
LS. Tressury Bill 022072025 5,500,000 Long 5-445& 5+'“% 108
37,896,990 _ 37,903,684 § 6,694

-36-

133/218




Fuiures

3 MONTH SOFR FUT Mar25
3M CORRA Futures Mar25
IMO EURO EURIBOR Dec25
3MO EURO EURIBOR Dec26
3MO EURO EURIBOR Jun 25
3MO EURO EURIBOR Jun26
IMO EURO EURIBOR MAR2S
3MO EURO EURIBOR Mer26
3MO EURO EURIBOR Mer27
IMO EURO EURIBOR Sep25
3MO EURO EURIBOR. Sep26
90-DAY BANK BILL Dec24
90-DAY BANK BILL Mar25
AUST 10Y BOND FUT Dec24
C$ CURRENCY FUT DEC24
CAN 10YR BOND FUT Mar25
CAN 2YR BOND FUT Mar25
CAN SYR BOND FUT Mar25
CANOLA FUTR (WCE) Mar25
CATTLE FEEDER FUT JAN2S
CATTLE FEEDER FUT Mar25
CHF CURRENCY FUT DEC24
COCOA FUTURE  Mar25
COCOAFUTURE  May25
COCOA FUTURE - IC Mar25
COCOA FUTURE - IC May25
COFF ROBUSTA 10tn Jan25
COFFERE 'C' FIFTURE Jul2s
COFFEE 'C' FUTURE Mar25
CHIFPEHQ'C'Plfflﬂlﬂ.hﬂlyﬂﬁ
COPPER FUTURE  Mar2$
COTTON NO.2 FUTR Mnr25
CRUDE PALM OIL FU Feb2$
DAX INDEX FUTURE DEC24
DJIA MINI E-CBOT DEC24
EMINT S&P500 ESG DEC24
EURO FX CURR FUT DEC24
EURO STOXX 50 DEC24
EURO-BOBL FUTURE DEC24
Euro-BTP Future Dec24
Euro-OAT Future Dec24
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Unrealized

1,775
512
8,345
5,720
9323
2,630
3,967
7,961
9,746
£,040
8,900
5,907
1,057
9,645
11,755
64,547
9,110
9,261
4,999
1,113

4,269
274,150
137,430
125,425
75,039
6,420
129,506
173,500
229,406
3,763
£,540
5,619
51,945
116,600
15,295
3,006
1,988
32,892
164,183
23,497



Fuiures

EURC-SCHATEFUT Dec24
FTSE 100 IDX FUT DEC24
FTSE CHINA AS0 DEC24
FTSEJSE TOP 40 DEC24
GOLD 100 OZ FUTR. Feh25
IFSC NIFTY S0 FUT DEC24
IPN 10Y BOND{(OSE) Dec24
KC HRW WHEAT FUT Mar25
KOREA 10YR BND FU Dec24
KOREA 1YR BND FUT Dec24
KOSFIZ INX FUT DEC24
LEAN HOGS FUTURE Apr25
LEAN HOGS FUTURE Feb25
LIVE CATTLE FUTR Apr2s
LIVE CATTLE FUTR Feb25
LIVE CATTLE FUTR. Jun23
LME NICKEL FORWARD 03,/19/2025
Low 5u Gasoil G Jan23

MILL WHEAT EURO Mar25
MSCIEMGMKT DEC24
HASDAQ 100 E-MINI DEC24
NY Harb ULSD Fut Feb25

WY Harb ULSD Fut Jan25
OMXS30 IND FUTURE DEC24
PALLADIUM FUTURE Mar25
Phelix DE Bese Q Apr23
PLATINUM FUTURE Jan25
RED WHEAT FUT MGE Mar25
S&P 500 EMINI FUT Dec24
S&PFTSX 60 IX FUT DEC24
Short Euro-BTP Fu Dec24
SOYBEAN FUTURE  Jan25
SOYBEAN MEAL FUTR. Mar23
SOYBEAN OIL FUTR Mar25
SP1200 FUTURES DEC24
TIFNATGASF Jan25

UK Matural Gas Futlan?5

U8 10YR NOTE (CBTIMar25
WHEAT FUTURE(CET) Mz25
WHEAT FUTURE(CBT) May25
WHITE MAIZE-SAF Mar25
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Unrealized

20,403
1,051
4,001
2,153

52,660

979
&7

13,387

81,151

81,518
2,168
5300

26,220

19,120

27,100
9,350

46,301
3,950

19,770
3,135

27,110

60,761

54,369
1,107

13,140
2,193

245
775
74,613
170,539

40,816

33,0962
8,620

498
33

24,830

15916

63,461
0,688
4233
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UPPLEMENTARY 1] OF AUDITED]
YEAR ENDED 30 NOYEMBER 2024

Unrealized

Futures Contracts Direction Gain
WHITE SUGAR (ICE) Mer25 3 Short g 2,555
WTI CRUDE FUTURE Jan23§ (35) Short 58,100
5 __3.068.870
Unrealizsd

Futures Contracts Direction (Linss)
3 MONTH SOFR. FUT DEC25 (&) Shor ¢ (700)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT DEC26 (6) Shart (2,762}
3 MONTH SOFR. FUT Jun25 (1) Shore (175)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT Jun2é (6) Short (2,550)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT Mar26 (5) Short (1,600)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT Mar27 (N Shart (3,812)
3 MONTH SOFR. FUT Sep25 (1 Short (25)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT Sep26 (8) Short (2,975)
3M CORRA Futures Dec25 13 Long (2,108)
M CORRA Futures Jun2$ 20 Long (375)
iM CORRA Fotures Jun2é 3 Long (929)
3M CORRA Futures Ma26 7 Long (1,224)
3M CORRA Futures Sep2s 16 Long (875)
90-DAY BANK BILL Dec2s (£ )] Short (995)
90-DAY BANK BILL Jun25 (26) Short (1,529)
90-DAY BANK BILL Mar26 @ Short (584)
S0-DAY BANK BILL Sep25 (%) Short (1,657)
AMSTERDAM IDX FUT DEC24 (13 Short (32,710)
AUDUSD CRNCY FUT DEC24 (1) Short (455)
AUST 3YR BOND FUT Dec24 ) Short (20E)
BIST 30 FUTURES DEC24 o7 Short (15,466)
BF CURRENCY FUT DEC24 () Short (715)
BRENT CRUDE FUTR Feb25 15 Long (31,280)
BRENT CRUDE FUTR. Mer25 1 Long (650
CAC40 10 EURO FUT DEC24 T Long (50)
CBOE VIX FUTURE JAN2S 1 Long (597}
COFF ROBUSTA 10tn Mar25 5 Long (68,2200
CORN FUTURE ~ Mer235 (25) Short (6,68T)
CORN FUTURE  May25 (28) Short (1,538)
ECX EMISSION  Dec24 (20 Short (57.394)
E-MINI RUSS 2000 DEC24 M Short (12,325)
EURO-BUND FUTURE DEC24 (32 Short (92,391)
EUROQ-BITXL 30Y BND Dec24 ) Short (35,399)
FTSE KLCI FUTURE DEC24 4 Long (489)
FTSE TAIWAN INDEX DEC24 25 Long (35,0856)
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Fuiures

FTSEMIB IDX FUT DEC24
GASOLINE RBOB FUT Jan25
HANG SENG IDX FUT DEC24
HSCEIFUTURES DEC24
ICE 3MTH SONLA FU Decs
ICE 3MTH SONLA FU Declt
ICE 3MTI SONIA FU Jun25
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU Jun26
ICE 3MTH SONLA FU Mar23
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU Mar26
ICE 3MTH SONLA FU Mar27
ICE 3IMTH SONLA FU Sep25
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU Sepl6
TFN YEN CURR FUT DEC24
LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 03/19/2025

LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 12/182024
LME COPPER FORWARD 03/19/2025

LME COPPER. FORWARD 121872024
LME LEAD FORWARD 03/19/2025
LME LEAD FORWARD 12/18/2024
LME NICKEL FORWARD 12/18/2024
LME ZINC FORWARD (£)03/19/2025
LME ZINC FORWARD (§) 12/18/2024
LONG GILT FUTURE Mar25

Low Su Gasoil G Feb25

MSCI EAFE DEC24

MSCI SING IX ETS DEC24
NATURAL GAS FUTR. Feb25
MATURAL GAS FUTR. Jen2%

NEW ZEALAND § FUT DEC24
NIKKE] 225 (CME) DEC24
NIKKEI 225 (3GX) DEC24
OMXS530 ESG FUTURE DEC24
PLATINUM (OSE} Oct25
RAPESEED EURD Fob23

SETS0 FUTURES DECZ4

SGX Iron Ore 62% Dec2d4
SILYERFUTURE Mar25
SOYBEAN MEAL FUTR Jan25
STOXX EURD ESG-X DEC24
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) Mar25
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Unrealized

(11,664)
{200.210)
(6,034)
(7,878)
(8,058)
(5,717
(10224)
(303)
(1,513)
(1,688)
(6,370)
(11,370)
(4,666)
(9,675)
(1,658}
(209,978)
(29,386)

(25,720)
(14,952)
(12,171}
(58,343)
(8,253)
(103,760)
(55,011)
(5,975)
(3,6100
(2,092}
(109,520)
(4,510}
(755)
(12,350}
(20,237)
)
(2,082)
(7.472)
(2,885)
(3,280)
(783)
(3,1000
(656)
{10,763)
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YEAR DELD 3 N 2024

Unrealized
Futures —Contracts _ Direction  __ (Loss)
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) May25 3 Long ¢ {2,061)
SWISS MKT X FUTR DEC24 53 Loog (9,418)
TOPIX INDX FUTR DEC24 25 Long (14,438)
US 2YR NOTE (CBT) Mar25 (33) Shart (20,484)
US 5YR NOTE (CBT) Mar25 (48) Short (29,875)
US LONG BOND(CBT) Mar25 (5) Shart (5,375)
US ULTRA BOND CBT Mar25 3 Short (1,625)
VSTOXX FUTURE DEC24 18 Long (778)
WTI CRUDE FUTURE Feb25 3 Long (6,690)

§ _(438054)
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2025

v

59,532,224 .55

8,901,258,215

444,476.15 66,458,074
26,686,161.70 3,990,114,897
836,814.58 78,635,466
4,786,415,310
2,277,981.84
90,754.21
513,354.03
11.71 1,751
9.22 866
A11/1Vv)
9,324
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2025

2025
500

2,000,000

10,000,000

7,706,810
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2024 2023 12 31
2024 2023

7,248,286 1,083,764 6,786,842 1,014,769
441,126 65,957 309,878 46,333
17,002 2,542 59,294 8,866
53,453 7,992 62,257 9,309
7,759,867 1,160,255 7,218,271 1,079,276
33,307 4,980 60,251 9,009
7,793,174 1,165,235 7,278,522 1,088,285
360,074 53,838 527,595 78,886
89,695 13,411 282,275 42,206
449,769 67,249 809,870 121,092
2,000,000 299,040 2,000,000 299,040
5,343,405 798,946 4,468,652 668,153
7,343,405 1,097,986 6,468,652 967,193
7,793,174 1,165,235 7,278,522 1,088,285
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2023 12 31
2024 2023

4,816,936 720,228 4,821,000 720,836
214,529 32,076 232,471 34,759
215,213 32,179 139,646 20,880
34,933 5,223
5,246,678 784,483 5,228,050 781,698
3,044,303 455,184 3,020,111 451,567
1,109,580 165,904 1,082,186 161,808
181,781 27,180 346,322 51,782
36,261 5,422 37,748 5,644
5,600 837
4,371,925 653,690 4,491,967 671,639
874,753 130,793 736,083 110,059
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2023 12 31
2,000,000 299,040 3,957,569 591,736 5,957,569 890,776
736,083 110,059 736,083 110,059
(225,000) (33,642) (225,000) (33,642)
2,000,000 299,040 4,468,652 668,153 6,468,652 967,193
874,753 130,793 874,753 130,793
2,000,000 299,040 5,343,405 798,946 7,343,405 1,097,986
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2024 2023 12 31

2024 2023
874,753 130,793 736,083 110,059
36,261 5,422 37,748 5,644
(215,213) (32,179) (139, 646) (20,880)
695,801 104,036 634,185 94,823
(131,248) (19,624) 109,599 16,387
42,292 6,323 (48, 245) (7.,214)
8,804 1,316 22,681 3,391
(167,521) (25,048) 64,918 9,707
(192,580) (28,795) 74,074 11,076
255,548 38,210 857,212 128,170
(9,317) (1,393) (3,293) (492)
215,213 32,179 139,646 20,880
205,896 30,786 136,353 20,388
(225,000) (33,642)
461,444 68,995 768,565 114,916
6,786,842 1,014,769 6,018,277 899,853
7,248,286 1,083,764 6,786,842 1,014,769
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1990 15
2009 2014
2014
Cayman Islands Monetary

Authority

2023 10

2024 2023 12 31
2031
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2024
2023 34,933

2024 2023 12 31

2024 2023 12 31
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16 12
2024 2023 12 31
I1AS
12
12
12
2024 2023

748,286 1,186,842
6,500,000 5,600,000
7,248,286 6,786,842

2024 2023 12 31
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2024 2023
316,114 192,938
125,012 116,940
441,126 309,878
2024 2023
39,308 25,400
20,200
17,000
39,308 62,600

2024 2023
(5,600)
5,600




2022

2023

2024

12

12

12

31

31

31

2022

2023

2024

2023

2024

12

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

31
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793,393 372,854 1,166,247
(69,635) (69,635)
3,293 3,293
796,686 303,219 1,099,905
9,317 9,317
806,003 303,219 1,109,222
737,162 334,379 1,071,541
(69,635) (69,635)
26,861 10,887 37,748
764,023 275,631 1,039,654
12,816 23,445 36,261
776,839 299,076 1,075,915
32,663 27,588 60,251
29,164 4,143 33,307

2024 2023

10,000,000

2,000,000 2023 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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2024 12 31
0 2023 225,000
Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd.
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly Secretaries Limited
2024 2023
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 0 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
Coultry
Directors Ltd. 2024 30
2024 12 31 975,610 2023 975,610
2024 2023
383,055 333,615
IT 248,612 245,971
250,212 223,549
169,714 178,562
57,987 100,489
1,109,580 1,082,186
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2023

5,427

14,066

19,000
25,000

181,781

2023 139,082

58.97
2024 2023
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15,893

106,350
25,000

346,322
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2023 12 31
0.01  3.25 7,248,286 7,248,286

441,126 441,126

17,002 17,002

7,706,414 7,706,414

360,074 360,074

360,074 360,074

7,346,340 7,346,340
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2024 12 31
30

2024 12 31
30

30

2023

2024 2023 12 31

0.03 3.5 6,786,842 6,786,842

309,878 309,878

59,294 59,294

7,156,014 7,156,014

527,595 527,595

527,595 527,595

6,628,419 6,628,419
30 2023

2,245 2023 3,561

30 2023 30 30

2,245 2023 3,561
30 2023

19,500 2023 16,800
30 2023 30
19,500 2023 16,800
30
2024 2023 12 31

156/218



12
13
2023
2024
14
15

2023 10

400,000
2023 12 31

2025

2023

500,000

157/218

15

EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E26326)
0O00000000000000000

QUEENSGATE

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2024 and 2023
(expressed in United States dollars)

2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) § T,248,286 § 6785842
Client accounts recaivablie (Mote 4, 8) 441,128 300,678
Criiner recelvables 17,002 58,284
Prepaid expenses __ 53483 ___ B22s7
7,768,887 7.218.2T1
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assats (Note 5) 33,307 80,251
$§ 7,783,174 $ 7,278,522
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses (Mote §) : 1 380,074 5 527 595
Fees recelved in advance 89,898 282 275
448,768 808,870
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note §) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 5,443,405 4,468,652
__ T.343,405 6,468,652

$ 7,793,174 § 7278522

See noles lo consolidsted financial statements
Page 3
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
(expressed in United States dollars)
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INCOME
Directorship, trustes and managament fees (Note 9)
Miscellaneous
Interest income

Rental income

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefiis (Note 1)
Administration (Note 8,9)
Rent expense (MNata 9)
Depreciation (Mobe §)
Expected credit loss (Note 4)

NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

204 — 2023
4,818,938 § 4,821,000
214,528 232 471
215,213 139,846

- 34,933
5,246,678 5,228,050
3,044,303 3,020,111
4,108,580 1,082,188
181,781 348,322
36,261 37,748

= 5,600
4,371,928 4,481,967
BT4,753 $ 738,083

See noles lo consolidsted financial statements
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QUEENSGATE
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
(expressed i United States doliars)

Tatal

Retained shareholder's

Share capital eamings equity

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 2000000 § 3957588 8 5057580
Net incoma and comprahensiva incomea - 735,083 735,083
Dividends (Naks 8) - (225000) __ (225,000)
Balance at December 31, 2023 2,000,000 4 468,652 8,468,652
Net incoma and comprehensive income - BT4,753 874,753
Dividends (Maote B) = - -
Balance at December 31, 2024 5 2000000 § 5343405 5 7343405

See noles lo consolidsted financial statements
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023

(expressed in United States dollars)
2024 2023
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTMITIES
Met income and comprehensive income $ BT4,753 $ 738,083
Adjustrments for non-cash items and non-oparating items:
Depreciation (Note 5) 36,261 37,748
Interest income 15,213 {138 648)
695,801 634,185
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Chient accounts receivable {131,248) 108,599
Other recaivables. 42,292 (48,245)
Prepaid expenses 8,804 22 B&1
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {187.621) 64918
Fees received in advance {152.580) 74074
255,548 857,212
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (Mot §) r;i.:‘!ﬂ (3,283)
Interest income — n5213 38,845
205,896 136 353
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (Note 6) : (225,000)
MET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 451 444 768,565
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,706,842 8,018,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 5  T48288 $ s&7es842

See noles lo consolidated financial statements
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
(expressed in United States dollars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

CQueensgate (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman lslands cn
June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Ltd. ("QBTC") and is a wholly-owned subsdiary

of Queansgate Group Ltd. (the "Parant”), a company also incorporated in the Cayman lslands.

On January 2, 2009, QBTC undertook a restructuring in order to separale the banking activiies from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company wndertook a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust acliviies, On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to CQueensgate
Bank and Trust Company Ltd. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Ltd. and was licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
license and Mutual Fund Administration license with the Cayman lslands Monetary Authority (*CIMA")L

On October 5, 2023 CIMA accepted the surrender of the Class B Banking license and granted approval
for the change of name o Queensgate. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Company did not have any deposits with dients or overdrafts,

The Company has recebved an undertaking from the Cayman stands Government exempting it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031. Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards: ("IFRS") and reflect the following material accounting policy information:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements ofthe Company and entities
conftrolled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Confrdl is achieved when the Company:

*  has power over the imvestes;
= 5 exposed, or has nghts, to vanable relums from #ts mvolvem ent with the investee; and
# has the abil#ty to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investes if facts and arcumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obfains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains contrel until the date when the Company ceases to conirel
the subsidiary

All significant intercom pany transactions and balances have been eiminated on consolidation. Referto
Mote 7 for other disclogures relating to the subsidianes.

Page 7
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Use of estimates

Fmancial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and discosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
duning the repoting penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash and shor-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less,

Client accounts receivable and allowarrce for doubtfiul accounts

Client accounts recesvable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustes and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clents. Fee income receivables are dated net of a provision for expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behalf of clients do not hawe a related provision for expected credit lossas
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects to recover
once billed.

The prevision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credit lossas in receivable balances. These are based upon management's knowladge of the current
condition of the Company's clients.

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are staled at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation |5 caleulated wsing the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Fumiture and computer eguipment 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviess the carrying amount of it fixed assats to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impaimment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determing the axtent
of the mpairment loss {if any). For the years ended December 21, 2024 and 2023, the Company has
not identified any assets for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Fees received in advance
The Company cdlects payment from chents as a part of the annual biling cycle for annual fees which

are subsequently remitted to various reguiatory or governmental bodies, These fees are not recognised
as revenue for the Company.

Page 8
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023

fexpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Irrterest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:
for all interest bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield method.

Revente recogition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:
» directorship, trustes, management and other similar services provided o clients,

* miscellanecus sendces provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided fo
clients in connection with the directorship, trustee and management senices being provided;
and

+ rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from its
clients and exdudes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
an an accrual basis as performance obigations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of direclorship, trustese,
management, and registered office sendces toits clients. For these sendces, the Company recognises
revenues gver the contracted period of sendce which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple
services are provided to a single client, the revenues generated from each type of servce are
recognisad separately.

Miscellansous incoma includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overhead and
fees charged fo clents for miscellanecus services such as copy services for meetings or courier costs.
Disbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustes, management and cther similar services and IS recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services, Fees charged to clients for miscellaneous serdces are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties, The rental
income is sarned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on a contract. Mo rental
income was received during 2024 (2023; $34,933),

Operating expenses and accourrs payable

Operating expenses and the associated accounts payable, with the exceplion of depreciation and

expected credit loss, are recognised in the Consclidated Statements of Comprehensive Income on an
acerual basis.

Page 9
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023

fexpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

Forelgn currency translation

The Company's presentation currency is the Unliied States dollar. Assets and lizbilties denominated or
accounted for in curmencies other than United States dollars have been transiated into United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates nuling at the statement of financial position date. Foreign curmency
transactions and ncome and expense dlems have been transated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses arising from translation are included in the consclidated
statements of comprehensive income.

Assets under administration

Securities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or fiduciary capacity are not
included in these consdidated financial statements as such assets are nof the property of the Company.

Financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised in the Company's statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assels
and financial liabilties are initkally measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
or subsequenty measwred at fair value depending on their cash flow characteristics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and [abiities held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
ar it transfers the financial asset and substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnership of the assel
to another entity, Financial liabilites are derecognised when the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impaimment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
losses. Mo provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2024
and 2023

Fiduclary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business._ In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leages. a lessee recognises assels and liabilies for all lease arrangements unless the
term is 12 months or less or the underlyng asset has a low value. Due to the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Note 8) existing as at and during the yvears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the

Company has recorded the month to month lease cosls as rent expense on the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income.

Page 10
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United Siates dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a matenal impact on the financial statements in Juture periods.

New and armended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that are effective for the current year and has
concluded that these standards did not have an impact on the financial statements upon adoplion, with
the exception of the following:

+ The Company has adopted the amendments to 1AS 1 Preseniation of Finandal Statements in
the current year. The amendments relate to classfication of abilites as current versus non-
current on the balance sheet, The amendments require that an entity’s right to defer setflement
af a hability for at least twebhwe months after the reporting period must have substance and must
exist at the end of the reperting period. Classification of a liabilty is unaffected by the likelihocd
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settltement for at least bwebve months after the
reporting period. The impact on the financal statements is that all prier year comparative
labiliies hawve been classad as cument.

Critical accourdting judgerment and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimates and assum plions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities.
Estimales are continually evaluated and based on historical expenence and other faciors ncluding
expectations of future events that are balieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas
of judgement o estimation are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assels as well
as the recoverabily of client accounts receivable from clients and due from clients, The expected useful
economicihves of fined assets are based on pricr experience of similar assets. Client accounts recehvable
and due from clients are measured as either a 12 month or lifetime Expected Credit Losses ("ECL") based
an credit risk considerations.

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

x4 000 2003

Call deposits § 748,286 5 1,186,842
Short-term fixed deposits ___ 6500000  __ 5600,000
$ 7248288 $ 6,786,842

Short-term fived deposits as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 mature within three months from the criginal
igsued date.
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023

fexpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

4, CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECENVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

— 224  _____ 2023

Fee income recehvables $ 318.114 % 162,033
Recaivables for disburssments made on behalf of clients 125,012 116,940
Less: provision for expecied cradit losses - -

$ 441,126 5 308,878

Fee income receivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting pericd for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In determining the
recoverability of the fee income recerables, the Company considers any change in the credit quakity
of the recervables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting pericd.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired:

_ 2004 _ 2ms3
o1 to 180 days - 39,308 3 25,400
181 to 280 days - 20,200
Cner 380 days = 17,000
Total - past due but not impsired $___soe 3 62000

Movements in the provision for esgpected credit losses were as follows:

Balance at beginning of year 3 - % -
Impaimment losses eversed = =
Amourtts written off during the year as uncollectible - (S,800)
Increass in provision = 5,800
Balance at end of year 5 - ] -

Toreduce exposure to credit risk, the Company reviessrs the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit limits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfolic are
renviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.
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{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)
5 FIXED ASSETS
Fumiture and
complres
equipment  Mator wehicles Total
Costi
Balance at December 31, 2022 5 783,383 § 372,854 3§ 1,168,247
Disposals - (69, 835) {B9,635)
Additions 3,293 - 3,283
Balance st December 31, 2023 706,686 303,218 1,089,805
Disposals - - =
Additions 8,37 - 8,317
Balance at December 31, 2024 806,003 303,218 1,108,232
Accumulsted depreciation:
Balance at December 31, 2022 7a7 162 334,379 1.071.641
Disposals - (BB,B35) {B8,835)
Depreciation expansa 26,861 10,887 37,748
Balance st December 31, 2023 764,023 275,631 1,039,654
Disposals . i i
Depreciation expenss 12,616 23,445 36,261
Balance at December 21, 2024 778 839 299,078 1,076.915
Netbook \alue, December 31,2023 § 32663 § 27688 $ 60261
Net book weiue, December 31, 2024 ] 29164 § 4143 § 33,307
6. SHARE CAPITAL
— 2024 — 2023
Authorized:
10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par walue each
Issund:
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2023: 2,000,000) £ 2000000 $ 2000000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
(expressed in United States dollars)
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{continued)

8. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distnbutions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid
except out of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended
December 31, 2024, a dividend of nil was declared and paid (2023 WS5225,000). The rights conferred
upon the holders of the shares of any dass issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless
otherwise expressly provided by the berms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be vaned
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

SUBSIDIARIES

The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-oemed
subsidianes, Tlly Nominees Umited and Coultry Directors Ltd., and Tilly Nominees Lmited, in tum, is
parent to two whaolly-csmed subsidianes, Tily Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (collectively,
the “Subsidiares™). Al of the subsidiaries listed below are icensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with
CInAA,

Placa of Proporiion of cwnership

Principal incorporation interest and voling power

HName of subsidiary activity and oparation heid by the Compamy

2024 2023
Provide nominge

Tilly Nominees Limited shareholder senices Cayman lslands 100% 100%:
Provide corporate

Coultry Directors Ltd director sarvices Cayman Islands 0% 100%
Pronide corparate

Tilty Directors Limited director senices Cayman lslands 100%: 100%:
Provide company

Tilly Secretarias LimHed  secretary senices Cayman Islands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidianes dunng the year, nor does it intend (o
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company's ability to access
or use assels o seftle liabilities of the Subsidiaries. Coultry Directors Ltd. was struck off on
September 30, 2024,

As of December 31, 2024, guarantees in the tofal amount of 975,610 (2023 $975 810) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Islands on behalf of its Subsidianes.
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{continued)

8. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Administration expenses are as follows:

X4
Professional fees $ 383,055
IT costs 248,812
Govammant fees 280,212
Miscallaneous operating expenses 169,714
Utilitias 57 087

§__ 1,100,580

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included im the consclidated financial siatements are the following related party balances and

transadlions:
— 2024
As of Dacomber 31;
Cliert accounts necehable - 5427
Accourls payable and accrued expenses 14,088
Eor the years ended Decernber 31;
Directorship, rustes and management 5 18,000
Directors' fees (included in Administration expenses) 25,000
Rant expanse 181,781

—_ 2003
5 15,888
15,883
5 106,350
25,000
348,322

All ransachons with related parties are conducted on normal commercial lerms and at non-preferential

interest rates.,

Certain employees of the Company and certain assets of the Company are alse utilised by the Parent
employees’

for ts ongoing operations. The
the Parent and is not separately guantifiable.

170/218
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United Siates dollars) {continued)

10. PEMSION PLAMN

11,

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for all of &s qualifying employees,
Comtributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees’ porticn. The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2024 was 5110602 (2023 $139.082) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrument is a contract that ghves rise to a inancial asset of one entity and a financial liabiity
af ancther entity. The Company enlters into contracts invobving financial mstruments during the normal
course of its business,

Risk exposures arising from financial mstruments are monitored by management, The main risks
ariging from the Company's financial instrumeants ame credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk, The exposure to, and management of, these risks is
summarised below. The year-end figures reported in these consolidated financial statements for
financial instruments are reflecthve of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and courtterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one parly to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company to credit and counterparty risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and client
accounts receivable,

The Company manages its exposure o credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fixed deposis
with a regulated financial institution in the Cayman lslands. only taking referred business, and
menitoning cutstanding recesvable balances, as discusgsed in Note 4,

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by one financial
institution in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, approximately 58.97% (2023 57.16%) of the Company's
directorship, lrustee and management fees were earned from its three (2023: three) largest customers,
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2024 or 2023,

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilfies,

Ligquidity risk is monitored by the Company’s management to ensure that the Company has sufficient
liquid assets to be able to meetits future expected cash outflows, and maintains a significant propertion
of its assets in cash in order to manage liquidity nsk. Refer to interest rate risk table disdosures for
analysis of liquidity gap.

Page 16
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate rigk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its inlerest rate risk by ensuring that the interest rate on assels equals or
exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability. The tables below summarise this matching as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023. [lems are allocated bo lime bands by reference Lo the sarlier of the next
interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

2524
Effective
Interest
Rats Loss than Greater than
orRangs (%) Ondemand _ Imonths _ 3 monthe Total
Anmote:
Cesh and cash equivalents 001325 § 7248286 § - 5 - § 7248288
Cliant scoourts recahabls - 441,128 - - 441,128
Crthar recaivabies - 17,002 - - 17,002
T 14 3 - % - 7 14
Monedary Lisbilithes:
Accounts payabie and accrued
Sxpanses - § 380074 § - % - § 360,074
5 360074 § - 5 - 5 30074
SenstthvityMiquidity gap 5 7348340 35 R ] - 37348340
Page 17
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United Siates dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Irrterest rate risk (continued)
2023
Effactive
Interest
Rals Less than Greater than
or Range (% _On demand 3 months 3 months Tatal
Monetary Assete
Cash snd cash aquivalonts 00335 § E788842 § - 8 - § 5,788,842
Client sccourts recahaiis - 308,878 F _r 300,678
Other recehabiss - 58,264 - - 59,394
5 75004 § - 3 = 5 7158014
Monatary Liabllifes:
Deposlion’ accounts - % - § - % - § -
Accolrts payable Shd accnssd
EXpEnses - §  B3RYE05 § - % - § E37.505
E2T.505 % - % - §_E27508
Sansitivityfliquidity gap § 8828410 § - 5 - 5 _BEI410

The Company is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and floating interest rates on its cash flows,

At December 31, 2024, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2023: 30) basis points higher with all cfher variables held constant, shareholder's equity would hawve
been 32,245 higher (2023; 53,561 higher). § market interest rales had been 30 (2023 30) basis points
lerwer with all other variables held constant, shareholder’s equity would have decreased by less than
52,245 (3023 wauld have decreased by less than $3,561) due to the fact that certain account balances
eam interest at a rate lower than 30 basis points.

At December 31, 2024, with respect to the fixed rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
{2023: 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 518,500 higher (2023; $16,800 higher), If market inferest rates had been 30 {2023 30} basis
points lower with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than 518,500 (2023; would have decreased by less than $16 . 800) due to the fact that certain account
balances earned interesl at a rate lower than 30 bass points.

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023

fexpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Irrterest rate risk (continued)

This analysis is based on interest bearng instruments held at year-end, and assumes the changs in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest bearing nstruments were held
constant throughout the reporting pericd. Thirty basis points is the sensitndty rate used when reporling
interast rate risk intermally to key management parsonnal and rpresants management's assassmaent
of the possible change in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman |slands, and mainly holds instrum ents with net exposuresto the
Cayman Islands dollar (2023 Cayman |siands dollar), The Cayman Istands dollar has a fixed exchange
rate against the United States dallar.

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, no foreign currency assels or liabilities were held
other than the Cayman kslands doliar, which is pegged to the United States dollar,

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance, The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2023,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary viting shares and retained eamings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA, Failure to mest
minemum capital requirements can initate certain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capifal
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Companies Act of the
Cayman islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Company's assels, liabilities, and cerain off-balance sheet item s as calculated under regulatory
accounfing practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualiative
judgments by CIMA aboul components and risk weightings.

Prior to the surrender of the Class B Banking License, the Company was required to maintain a capital
adequacy ratic of at least 15%. The Company was in compliance with this requirement for the period
from January 1, 2023 to Cclober 5, 2023 (license surmander date).

Under the terms of s licenses, the Company is reguired to mainiain a minimum net worth of

KYD400,000 (LSS500.000). The Company is in complianee with thiz requirement as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Page 19
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QUEENSGATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2024 and 2023
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

14. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
15, APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The congolidated financial statements were approved by a committes of the Board of Direclors and
authorized for issue on March G, 2025.
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CIBC
2025 25,920,000 38 7,556
1965
2024 12 1,135,000,000 1,697
BNY
BNY
BNY
BNY
One
2025 900 17 4,438

UFJ
193.82

One

One 2000
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(Financial Conduct Authority)

2025 16,003 310
1997
2010
The Standards Board for Alternative Investments
(The Hedge Fund Standards Board) SBAI
(The Standards) 2007 (The
Hedge Fund Working Group)
2008 SBAI
2013 Financial Conduct Authority
2001 12 2013
Financial Services Authority 1998 12 2001 11
Securities and Futures Authority
1999 10 Commodity Futures Trading Commission
(Commodity Trading Advisor)
(Commodity Pool Operator) 2003 10 (Securities and
Exchange Commission) (Investment Advisor)
1999 10 (National Futures Association)
UFJ
2025 405
CIBC
(M
()
(i) (iv) )
(vi) (vii)
(viii) (ix) (€9) (xi)
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(xiv)

One

UFJ
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2.2
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@

(b)

© ( )
2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020

15

CIMA
2.6

3.1
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA
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CIMA
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®
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3.4
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CINA
4(3)
15
4(3)
80,000 100,000
4.1
CINA
CIMA
21
CIMA CIMA

4.2 CIMA
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CIMA
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©
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DIAM DIAM

Aspect
IFRS 2024 11 30 DIAM
DIAM Aspect
2024 11 30
I1SA
IESBA Code 1ESBA
Code

34 4
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Independent auditor”s report

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of DIAM Cayman Trust — Aspect Managed Futures Fund, a series
trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of DIAM
Cayman Trust — Aspect Managed Futures Fund (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at 30
November 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund*s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 November 2024;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholder for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Supplementary Schedule
of Investments (Unaudited) on pages 34-41, (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor®s
report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Class Fund"s internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Class Fund s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

18 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR = S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Queensgate
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate and 1its subsidiaries (the
““Company””), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders = equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its
consolidated financial performance, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board(1ASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® [International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (I1ESBA Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company
~s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
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To the Board of Directors of Queensgate
Page 2
Auditor ”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ”s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management ”s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 6, 2025
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